
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 15th August, 2006 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

A Hendry - Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01992 564246 Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J M Whitehouse (Chairman), J Hart (Vice-Chairman), Mrs R Gadsby, R Church, 
M Colling, Mrs A Cooper, R D'Souza, P House, D Jacobs and R Morgan 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 
 

 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   

 
  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 

substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 

 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 
 

2 

purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 1 JUNE 2006  (Pages 3 - 12) 
 

  To consider and agree the notes of the meeting of the Panel held on 1 June 2006. 
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents. 
 

 6. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report on Key Performance Indicators. 
 

 7. SRAFF VACANCIES  (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

  (Head of Finance) to consider the attached report. 
 

 8. DATA QUALITY AUDIT AND VALUE FOR MONEY STRATEGY  (Pages 27 - 62) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) to consider the attached 
report. 
 

 9. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING 2006/07 (1ST QUARTER)  (Pages 63 - 76) 
 

  (Head of Finance) to consider the attached report. 
 

 10. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 11. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  To consider the forward programme of meeting dates for the Panel. Meetings are 
programmed in for: 
 
14 November 2006; 
15 January 2007; and 
12 February 2007. 
 

 



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON THURSDAY, 1 JUNE 2006 

IN CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 9.20 PM 

Members
Present:

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), (none), R Church, M Colling, Mrs A Cooper, 
Mrs R Gadsby, P House and R Morgan 

Other members 
present:

J Knapman 

Apologies for 
Absence:

J Hart 

Officers Present P Haywood (Joint Chief Executive), T Tidey (Head of Human Resources 
and Performance Management), R Palmer (Head of Finance), A Scott 
(Head of Information, Communications and Technology), A Hall (Head of 
Housing Services), C O'Boyle (Head of Legal, Administration and 
Estates), Mrs J Tautz (Senior Local Land Charges Officer), J Gilbert 
(Head of Environmental Services), J Preston (Head of Planning and 
Economic Development), Mrs L MacNeill (Assistant Head of Leisure 
Services), S Tautz (Senior Performance Management Officer) and 
A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) 

Also in 
attendance:

(none)

1. WELCOME

The Chairman welcomed the new members to this the first meeting of the Finance 
and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel and briefly outlined the purpose of the 
panel.

2. CONFIRMATION OF MEMBERS, CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN.  

The Committee noted that since the agenda was printed, the membership had been 
slightly altered. Councillor Morgan was now a member in place of Councillor 
Knapman and Councillor Jacobs had replaced Councillor Goold. 

3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

No Substitute members had been appointed to the meeting. 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

5. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

The notes of the meeting of the Panel held on 25 April 2006 were agreed as a correct 
record.

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

2

6. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

The Panel noted the work programme for 2006/07. Members were informed that if 
they wished to add anything to the work programme they should get into contact with 
Tony Tidey, the Lead Officer or the Chairman. 

7. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2005/06 AND 2006/07  

The Head of Human Resources and Performance Management introduced the report 
on the Key Performance Indicators. The system uses a traffic light system, Red and 
Green to indicate the performance against the target for the year. Red means that 
the target was not achieved and Green that the target was achieved. 

Of the 100 or so performance indicators, the Cabinet chose 40 of these as key 
performance indicators as crucial targets, and aims to have 40% of these indicators 
in the top quartile. The panel noted the 40 key performance indicators listed in the 
agenda.

Progress in achieving top quartile performance is reported to the Scrutiny Panel and 
the relevant Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter. Performance reports 
in respect of all other BVPI’s and LPIs are placed in the Members’ Room on a 
quarterly basis. 

Using the latest figures the overall position of top quartile status was reported as 
follows:

(a) 19 (47.7%) met the top quartile target (Green); and  
(b) 21 (52.3%) failed o meet the top quartile target (Red). 

This is comfortably above our 40% target. Given this, the panel could recommend to 
the Cabinet that a 50% target should be set for next year.  

The panel noted the key performance indicators outturn for 2005/06, the outturn 
related to the whole year. The Senior Performance Management officer reported that 
from June this year a performance management ICT system would provide improved 
KPI monitoring reports.  

The Panel went through the KPIs, where the following was noted: 

BV2b (The Duty to Promote Race Equality) – was 2% below target, but there is an 
action plan for improvement, which will be implemented in the autumn. 

EH6 (Process all Licence Applications within the Statutory Period) – was doing well – 
but circumstances beyond the Council’s control stopped us getting 100% - because 
of this the Council might need to review the target of 100%.  

BV82a(i) (Household Waste Management (Recycling))- The Head of Environmental 
Services updated the figures for this indicator changing the 2005/06 Q4 figure to 
16.2%.

BV82a(ii) (Household Waste Management (Recycling))– The Head of Environmental 
Services reported the outturn for 2005/06 Q4 figure was 8044. 

BV82b(i) (Household Waste Management (Composting))– The Head of 
Environmental Services reported the outturn for 2005/06 Q4 was 7.3%. 

Page 4



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

3

BV82b(ii) (Household Waste Management (Composting)) – The Head of 
Environmental Services reported the outturn for 2005/06 Q4 was 3617. 

BV199a (Local Street and Environmental Cleanliness – Litter and Detritus) – The 
Head of Environmental Services reported the outturn of 2005/06 Q4 was 13% (in this 
case a low figure is good). 

BV199b (Local Street & Environmental Cleanliness – Graffiti) – The Head of 
Environmental Services reported the outturn of 2005/06 Q4 was 0% (in this case a 
low percentage is good). 

BV199c (Local Street & Environmental Cleanliness – Fly-posting)) – The Head of 
Environmental Services reported the outturn for 2005/06 Q4 was 0% (again low is 
good).

BV82 and BV199 have improved significantly. 

The Chairman asked if there were any discernable differences between areas with 
wheeled bins and those without. The Head of Environmental Services replied that 
they cannot tell about individual areas, but they were sending 3.5 thousand tonnes 
less to landfill this year compared to last year, which was good progress. 

Councillor Mrs Gadsby said that the street cleansing in Waltham Abbey was not very 
good and asked why the BVPIs showed an improvement. The Head of 
Environmental Services said that the areas that they gathered the figures from was 
prescribed by the Government; these remain the same year on year and are not 
sensitive to these cases. 

Councillor Morgan commented that flytipping was getting worse in the rural areas, 
and asked how it should be controlled. The Head of Environmental Services replied 
that getting evidence was difficult, there was now more flytipping with no 
corresponding prosecutions. The Head of Legal Administration and Estates clarified 
that the evidence was not difficult to obtain, it was just difficult to prove. In order to 
keep on top of this the council needs all its officers looking out for fly-tipping when 
they travelled around the district. 

BV8 (Percentage of Invoices Paid on Time) - The corrective action proposed should 
have read: 
“A further request to pass invoices more promptly has been made. The indicator is to 
be monitored monthly by officers to check progress. The figure for April 2006 is 
encouraging." 

BV9 (Percentage of Council Tax Collected) – was just under target, but two extra 
staff have now been recruited to help. 

BV78b (Speed of Processing Change in circumstances for Housing Benefit/Council 
Tax Benefit Claims) – has now had a change of definition – the DWP is now advising 
that it is now 9 days and not 11 days. 9 days is a difficult target to achieve as a lot of 
claims do not always come in with all the information and have to be sent back for 
completion, which we then give the claimant a month to reply to. Officers had 
improved from 25 days to 11 days. 

BV63 (Energy Efficiency of Housing Stock) – The Head of Housing Services 
commented that this figure should be indicated as being in the top quartile and not 
the median. 

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

4

BV64 (Vacant Dwellings Returned to Occupation or Demolished) – The Head of 
Environmental Services explained that it was difficult to set a target for this KPI. He 
asked that it be taken out for now and reinstated if need be later, if thought 
warranted. On consideration, the Panel agreed to remove this indicator. 

Agreed to remove BV64 from the KPIs. 

BV183a (Length of Stay in Temporary Accommodation (Bed & Breakfast) in weeks) – 
The Head of Housing Services noted that the target for 2006/07 should be 0%. 

BV184a (Non-Decent Local Authority Dwellings (percentage) – The Head of Housing 
Services indicated that the target for 2006/07 should be 6% and for 2007/08 should 
be 5.2%. 

BV15b (Affordable Housing) – This is a case for member consideration at the various 
Planning Sub-Committees. Councillor Knapman commented that sometimes the 
council gets money instead of affordable housing, and asked how this is recorded. 
The Head of Housing Services replied that this is included in the Capital Programme 
and in the progress report on Section 106 agreements but is not noted here in the 
BVPIs.

BV11b (Top 5% Earners: Ethnic Minorities) – The Head of Human Resources and 
Performance Management noted that although the outturn is red, it is only under by 
one member of staff. 

BV12 (Working Days Lost Due to Sickness Absence) – The Head of Human 
Resources and Performance Management noted that last year and the year before 
that the figures were estimated. This year the figures were obtained by accurate 
monitoring, so this will be taken as the base line figure. New procedures have been 
put in place for the Services to follow. 

BV157 (E-Government: E-enabled interactions) – this is being removed as E-
Government has moved to regional centres. New ways of monitoring will be 
introduced along with a new BVPI. 

BV106 (New Homes on Previously Developed Land) – The Head of Planning and 
Economic Development said performance was pleasing. The most recent figures 
show that only 3 properties were built on greenfield sites. This BVPI should be cross-
referenced with Housing Services’ Affordable Housing figures. 

BV109a, b & c (Major, Minor and Other Planning Applications) - The Head of 
Planning and Economic Development noted that these had improved from last year. 
They have met their figures because of their new IT system restructure and new 
(temporary) staff, the ‘hit squad’. The Chairman asked if they are able to maintain 
their improvements. The Head of Planning replied that they would report on their 
situation with the use of the ‘hit squad’ to the July Cabinet. 

BV109b – the Head of Planning and Economic Development said they would miss 
their performance targets mainly because of the Sub-Committee dates – he could 
see merit in having 3 sub-committees on a 3 weekly cycle to improve the timescale. 
Councillor Colling asked that all sub-committee chairmen be given some background 
information on this and they be invited to the next meeting of the Constitutional and 
Members Service Standing Panel when they may look into this issue. 

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

5

Agreed to invite the Sub-Committee Chairmen to the next Constitutional and 
Members Service Standing Panel meeting. 

The Panel then considered the 40 KPIs as a whole to see if any could be removed or 
added to the list. 

The Chairman asked the Panel to consider if there were any non-essential KPIs or 
new ones that should be added. 

Councillor Knapman (Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support 
Services Portfolio Holder) commented on the need to build around 600 affordable 
homes per annum and that the targets for H15a should be altered upwards to reflect 
this. The Chairman said that they should let the Housing Scrutiny Panel complete its 
work before altering the targets. The Head of Housing Services pointed out that the 
targets need to have some bearing of what’s being constructed. The Housing 
Scrutiny Panel has recently completed this work and has made its recommendations 
to the Cabinet, but it is not certain if it will produce any more affordable homes. In this 
case money is not the issue but the land allocated to housing is. The issues concerns 
Planning Policy in the Green Belt. 

The Head of Human Resources and Performance Management said that the next 
years’ targets should be centred on core business, as the external auditor was likely 
to ask why they had been chosen. As all national targets are increasing we have to 
be satisfied that we are able to meet the upgraded targets. 

Councillor Morgan wanted to know if Planning Enforcement was monitored. He was 
told that it was not easy at present, as it is based on a manual system, but it will soon 
go on to computerised monitoring systems, which will enable planning to provide 
more information for the BVPIs. A report on this will be presented soon. 

Attention was drawn to the Community Safety BVPIs for 2005/06. It was noted that it 
is not solely within the power of the Council to influence the performance of these 
indicators. Management Board wished to pursue improvement in this area with Essex 
Police and through the auspices of the Epping Forest Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership. However it was not recommended that these indicators be adopted as 
KPIs for 2006/07. The Chairman asked that it be established how these targets link 
with Police targets and that this should be added to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee work programme. 

Agreed that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be asked to consider the 
involvement of the Epping Forest Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership in the 
monitoring of the Community Safety BVPIs. 

Councillor Gadsby asked that Parking Issues be added to the list of Performance 
Indicators. The Head of Environmental Services replied that they could monitor how 
many correctly issued/ appealed against tickets have been issued or the number 
successfully issued, or the recovery rate on tickets issued but not paid. For these 
figures we are in the hands of others, and it is important that we chose indicators that 
we can control.  

Agreed that a new local performance indicator on Parking be added, looking at how 
many tickets are issued, how many are appealed and how many were successful in 
their appeal. 

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

6

The Joint Chief Executive (for Resources) endorsed the Head of Human Resources’ 
comments concerning the achievement top quartile status. Cabinet had decided that 
the Council could achieve 40% and we achieved 47%; the government will look for 
us make further improvements. It is possible to recommend to the Cabinet that we 
now look to achieve 50% of the KPIs to achieve top quartile status. 

Councillor Knapman agreed that this was a realistic figure to meet. 

RECOMMENDED TO CABINET: 

1. That BV64 (Vacant Dwellings Returned to Occupation or Demolished) 
be deleted as a Key Performance Indicator and that Local Performance 
Indicator PR3  (Response to Press Enquiries) be deleted as a measure of 
local performance. 

2. That the remaining 39 KPIs be endorsed by the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny Panel and readopted as KPIs for 
2006/07.

3. That a new LPI on Parking, looking at how many tickets are issued, 
how many are appealed and how many were successful in their appeal, be 
developed by the Head of Environment Services and adopted as an 
additional KPI for 2006/07. 

4. That a target be set of 50% of the KPIs for 2006/07 to achieve top quartile 
status.

RECOMMENDED TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 

1. That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be asked to invite 
representatives of the Epping Forest Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership to explain the Partnership’s performance with regard to 
Community Safety BVPIs, and consider the Council’s role. 

8. GERSHON BACKWARD LOOKING STATEMENT FOR 2004/05

The Head of Finance introduced a report giving the background to the Gershon 
Efficiency Savings. In 2003 Sir Peter Gershon was commissioned by the Prime 
Minister and Chancellor to consider the scope for efficiency savings across all public 
expenditure. He was asked to look at specific proposals to deliver efficiencies and 
more general changes that could be made to the framework within which the public 
sector operates to improve efficiency. The final report  ‘Releasing Resources to the 
Front Line’ was published in July 2004. In November 2004, the Government 
introduced the efficiency agenda to local authorities. Local Government was informed 
that it would be responsible for delivering over £6.45bn of total efficiency gains by 
2007-08. This meant that over the next three years, each local authority is expected 
to achieve 2.5% p.a. efficiency gains compared to their 2004/05 baseline. 

Members noted that a backwards-looking statement was due for 2005/06 and was 
scheduled for submission by 16 June 2006. However on 17 May 2006 an additional 
60-page guide was issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). As authorities are required to take into account this guidance in 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

7

constructing their backward-looking statements the DCLG has extended the deadline 
from 16 June to 6 July. 

The current position figures were appended to the report. Members noted that in 
Gershon you can have cashable efficiency that can be transferred to other areas. 
Due to this the council had a cashable transfer of £400k to be added to the £500k 

Noted:

The Panel noted the contents of the report and the efficiencies proposed for 
inclusion in the backward-looking Annual Efficiency Statement for 2005/06 to 
be submitted to the DCLG by 6 July 2006. 

9. REPORT ON LOCAL LAND CHARGES  

The Scrutiny Panel had previously asked for an explanation of the ongoing 
anticipated reduction in the levels of income generated from Local Land Charges 
search fees. 

The Head of Legal Administration and Estates introduced the report on Local Land 
Charges. She explained that although this service did make a profit it was not set up 
explicitly to do so.

There are currently two ways to make a search. There is the official search, costing 
£120 and a personal search, costing £11.  

The official standard Local Land Charges search provided a comprehensive 
response to all standard search enquiries using records/documents held by the 
authority and Essex County Council, although not all of the information on which 
search responses are based is publicly available at the present time.   

A personal search is a search of the Local Land Charges Register carried out in 
accordance with the Local Land Charges Act 1975 and the Local Land Charges 
Rules 1977 as amended.  Section 8 of the 1975 Act allows any person to search the 
Local Land Charges Register on payment of the prescribed fee, which is currently set 
by the Government at £11.00 per parcel of land. In addition, but quite separate from 
the Local Land Charges Act requirement, any person is entitled by law to inspect free 
of charge any records open for public inspection held by a local authority.   

The two methods of search do not produce exactly the same results.  Furthermore, 
whilst the Council is entirely responsible for the accuracy of responses that it 
provides to official Local Land Charge searches, the local authority is not responsible 
in any way for the accuracy or quality of the work carried out by agents or individuals 
who carry out a personal search. 

Personal searches are being used more and more by various commercial agencies, 
and are now acceptable to mortgage companies. EFDC charges £11 plus £4 for any 
photocopying. Commercial Companies provide this for the £15 we charge, and sell it 
on to solicitors for £100. The people who are selling/buying see no difference in their 
charges.

An official search, although more thorough, can take much longer, which is another 
factor in some people choosing the personal search route. 

Page 9



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

8

At the request of the Joint Chief Executive (Resources), an investigation was recently 
conducted by a team from the ICT Department into the reasons for the current level 
of performance in responding to standard searches, which has concluded that the 
following points appear to be the major cause of delays in providing search 
information, which can presently take between eight and ten days: 

• Essex County Council Highways Department - There is no Service Level 
Agreement in place with the County Council for the provision of search 
responses. Since the withdrawal of the Highways Agency, search enquiries 
are currently posted on a daily basis to the Area Highways Office in Harlow. 
Search responses are returned in batches, not on a daily basis, by post from 
the Area Highways Office; and 

• Environmental Services - There is similarly no Service Level Agreement in 
place with the Head of Environmental Services for the provision of search 
responses. Search turnaround has traditionally been very good 
(approximately 2 days), although since the introduction of the Council’s new 
waste collection arrangements, staff that usually deal with search enquiries 
have had to give priority to dealing with waste collection enquires.

The performance of other internal services in responding to search enquiries is 
acceptable and can be more easily monitored/controlled by the Local Land Charges 
Section.

It should be noted that the Council pays Essex County Council £22.00 per search 
(£77,000 per annum) for a service that is both slow and erratic, which is the same 
cost as other Essex local authorities who are receiving a five-day or better turn 
round.

Further evidence that the impact of Local Land Charges is a national rather than a 
local issue has come from the Local Government Association who have alerted all 
local authorities to complete a questionnaire that they and the Office of Fair Trading 
have circulated in relation to the property search market.  The questionnaire is a 
response to claims from the commercial personal search organisations that councils 
are abusing their dominant market position by restricting and denying access to 
information needed by homebuyers.  This Council has replied to the questionnaire.  
In the same alert, the Local Government Association has advised Councils to brief 
their members on the following points: 

• The current system allows for personal searches of the Local Land Charges 
Register at a fee of £11.00 whereby individuals can carry out a limited search 
on their own behalf without paying the authority the full fee to carry out a more 
comprehensive search for them.  This nominal sum contributes towards the 
cost of maintaining the information and providing the service to the customer; 

• Whilst Councils understand the rationale of offering such a fee for genuine 
personal searches the facility appears to be increasingly used by commercial 
organisations paying the same £11.00 as private individuals and charging the 
consumer a much higher price for the information;   

• There are important consumer protection issues if consumers are not fully 
informed about the type of search their conveyancer has commissioned 
(£11.00 fee only covers a limited statutory search) and the image of local 

Page 10



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

9

government can be tarnished by complaints about searches which have, in 
fact, been carried out by other organisations; 

• As the volume of commercial searches increases there can be knock on 
effects on Council Tax budgets.  Calculations in Northamptonshire suggest 
the activity of commercial search company operators adds between 2% and 
10% to the district council tax bills; and 

• Councils are investing substantially in computerised systems in order to 
improve the standard and quality including speed of the service they offer. 

Councillor House asked what options were available to the Council as it cannot 
increase its fees. The Head of Legal Administration and Estates said that they had 
told the Government that £11 is not enough, as it does not cover our background 
costs. There are currently 50,000 items on the register (a computer system). By next 
year it will be merged with the Planning computer system, so it will make it easier for 
the public to look up. Soon they will be able to look at it from home, but they will still 
have to pay for it. 

Councillor Colling asked if we could get a better service from Highways. The Senior 
Local Land Charges Officer commented that those Councils receiving a better 
service had Mouchel Parkman acting as their agents. The Head of Legal 
Administration and Estates said that Mouchel Parkman could not provide the service 
for this authority at present, but in the future they may well be responsible for 
providing the Highways information for all the Essex Authorities.   

Councillor Knapman suggested that a follow up report would be necessary to 
address the issues that have been raised and how the service provided by Local 
Land Charges could be improved in order to complete with the personal search 
companies. He also asked whether the fee for a Local Land Charge search could be 
reduced and if this would affect the number of personal searches carried out. The 
Senior Local Land Charges Officer said that a reduction of the search fee is an 
option, this has been done in Castle Point which has led to a reduction in the number 
of personal searches being undertaken.  

The Chairman agreed that a further updating report should be provided at the 
November meeting, informing the panel what has been achieved and/or implemented 
in the meantime. 

RESOLVED: 

That a further report on the status of the Local Land Charges budget and the 
income generated from standard searches and personal searches, be  
brought to the November Finance and Performance Management Standing 
Panel, highlighting:

(a) progress achieved in improving current performance in relation to the 
turnaround for standard searches; 

(b) options for improving the search enquiry services provided by Essex 
County Council and the Head of Environmental Services; and 

(c) the implications for the Local Land Charges budget and the workload 
of the Land Charges Section of any reduction in the Council’s current 
fees and charges for searches. 

Page 11



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 1 June 2006 

10

10. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

None referred. 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Noted that the next meeting is to be held on 15 August 2006 at 7pm. Other 
programmed meetings are: 

14 November 2006, 
15 January 2007 and 
12 February 2007. 

Page 12



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL 
 
 
Title:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
 
 
Status:  Standing Panel 
 
 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
Performance Management 
 
1. To review Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) and Local Performance 

Indicator (LPI) outturns for the previous year at the commencement of each 
municipal year, and to determine the following on an annual basis: 

 
(a) The criteria for deciding which BVPIs and LPIs should be formally monitored 

by the Panel throughout the remainder of the year, based upon the ‘traffic light‘ 
system of performance reporting, Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
improvements, and existing council and member priorities; 

 
(b) A ‘basket’ of priority BVPIs and LPIs, performance against which will be 

reported to the Panel throughout the year; 
 

(c) The monitoring frequency of those priority BVPIs and LPIs identified by the 
Panel; 

 
(d) Arrangements for the wider member reporting and monitoring of performance 

against those BVPIs and LPIs that are not contained in the Panel’s ‘basket’ of 
high priority indicators; 

 
2. To consider proposals and make recommendations for corrective action in relation 

to poorly performing BVPIs and LPIs; 
 
Best Value Performance Plan 
 
3. To consider and make recommendations as appropriate on the format and content 

of the Council’s annual Best Value Performance Plan; 
 
Council Plan 
 
4. To undertake a full review of the existing Council Plan and to make 

recommendations to the Cabinet on the overall strategic vision to be adopted, within 
the context of how the authority intends to prioritise resources and develop services 
in the medium term; 

 
Public Consultation 
 
5. To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and 

shaping the future direction of services to make them more responsive to local 
needs, including the development of proposals for effective consultation through an 
annual community conference;  

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

 
6. To annually review the consultation exercises undertaken by the council over the 

previous year. 
 
Finance 
 
7. To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and in so doing to evaluate and rank 

proposals for either enhancing or reducing services. Members will need to ensure 
consistency between wider policy objectives and financial demands. 

 
8. To consider financial monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for 

each portfolio.  
 
 

 

Page 14



W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
20

06
/0

7–
 D

ra
ft 

as
 a

t 1
5 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

   
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

Ite
m

 
R

ep
or

t 
D

ea
dl

in
e/

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pr
og

re
ss

/C
om

m
en

ts
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

Fu
tu

re
 M

ee
tin

gs
 

(1
) B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

  
U

nd
er

w
ay

:  
• 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 B
V

P
P

 b
as

ke
t w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
 o

n 
1 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6.
 T

he
 P

an
el

s 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

n 
KP

Is
 

w
en

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

. 
• 

D
ra

ft 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7 
w

as
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
25

 A
pr

il 
20

06
. 

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 K

P
I S

cr
ut

in
y 

(2
)P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 R

ot
at

io
n)

  
 

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

:  
• 

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 b
e 

sc
ru

tin
is

ed
 a

t n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g.

 
• 

Lo
ca

l L
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
 w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
at

 th
e 

Ju
ne

 
m

ee
tin

g.
 A

 fu
rth

er
 u

pd
at

in
g 

re
po

rt 
to

 c
om

e 
ba

ck
 to

 
th

e 
P

an
el

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

(3
) Q

ua
rte

rly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

20
06

/0
7 

U
nd

er
w

ay
:  

• 
D

at
e 

fo
r p

er
io

d 
up

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

la
st

 re
vi

ew
ed

 
by

 P
an

el
 o

n 
7 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

6.
 

• 
Fi

rs
t q

ua
rte

r t
o 

go
 to

 1
5 

A
ug

us
t m

ee
tin

g.
 

• 
S

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r t
o 

go
 to

 1
4 

N
ov

em
be

r m
ee

tin
g.

 
• 

Th
ird

 q
ua

rte
r t

o 
go

 to
 1

2 
Fe

b 
07

 m
ee

tin
g.

 

 1 
Ju

ne
,  

15
 A

ug
us

t, 
 

14
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6,

  
 15

 J
an

ua
ry

,  
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
 

 14
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

Page 15



(4
) A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

R
ef

er
re

d 
by

 O
S

C
 o

n 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

(5
) R

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
oc

al
 L

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

  
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
: R

ep
or

t w
en

t t
o 

1st
 J

un
e 

m
ee

tin
g,

 a
no

th
er

 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 re
qu

es
te

d 
fo

r 1
4th

 N
ov

em
be

r  
m

ee
tin

g.
 

(6
) L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
  

 
 

N
ew

 it
em

 a
dd

ed
 b

y 
O

S
C

 o
n 

16
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

(7
) D

ra
ft 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
20

06
-2

01
0 

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

 

 

(8
) B

ud
ge

t P
ap

er
s 

 
To

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

at
 th

e 
N

ov
em

be
r, 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

an
d 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

N
ov

. m
ee

tin
g 

to
 c

on
si

de
r g

ro
w

th
/s

av
in

gs
; 

Ja
n.

 m
ee

tin
g 

to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 d

et
ai

le
d 

bu
dg

et
; 

Fe
b.

 m
ee

tin
g 

fo
r l

as
t c

om
m

en
ts

 p
rio

r t
o 

fo
rm

al
 ta

x 
se

tti
ng

. 

 

(9
) V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 

 
15

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

(1
0)

 D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ud
it.

 
S

el
f A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
 

 
15

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

 

Page 16



 1

Report to Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Standing 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 15 August 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2006/07 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Adrian Hendry, ext.4246 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
That the Scrutiny Panel consider the Council’s performance for the first three months 
of 2006/07, in relation to the Key Performance Indicators adopted by the Cabinet.  
 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As the Scrutiny Panel will 

be aware, a range of 52 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2006/07 was adopted 
by the Cabinet at it’s meeting on 10 July 2006.  

 
2. The KPIs are crucial to the Council’s core business and its corporate priorities, and 

comprise a mixture of both Best Value and Local Performance Indicators. The aim of 
the indicators is to focus improvement actions on key areas and to move performance 
against each into the top quartile of performing local authorities and to then maintain or 
improve further on that level of performance. Details of the KPIs for 2006/07 are set out 
at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3. Progress in achieving top quartile performance in respect of the KPIs is reported to the 

Scrutiny Panel and the relevant Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter, with 
the exception of the following key indicators for which little change is likely over each 
three month period, and which members have previously agreed be reported to 
Portfolio Holders and the Scrutiny Panel at year-end only:  

 
BVPI 2b (race equality) 
BVPI 11a, 11b, 11c (staff gender, ethnicity and disability) 
BVPI 14 (early retirements) 
BVPI 16a (disabled employees) 
BVPI 17a (ethnic minority employees) 
BVPI 106 (new homes on developed land) 
BVPI 154 (race equality in housing) 
BVPI 156 (disabled access) 
BVPI 199d (fly-tipping) 

 
4. Performance reports for each of the KPIs for the period from 1 April to 30 June 2006 

will be circulated in advance of the meeting. For this first quarter of the year, these 
reports will be produced using a new performance management software system, 

 
Agenda Item 6

Page 17



 2

designed to improve performance collation and presentation arrangements. 
Unfortunately, a number of implementation and training requirements delayed the 
circulation of reports with this agenda, and it has additionally not been possible to fully 
develop the structure and format of the performance reports in time for this meeting. 
Initially, reports will be presented in a similar format to that members have previously 
received, including the ‘traffic light’ representation of current performance against 
targets. Fully developed performance reports will be available from the end of Quarter 2 
of 2006/07, and a review of member requirements for the presentation of performance 
information will be undertaken once the new system is fully established. 

 
5. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the Council’s performance for the first 

three months of 2006/07 in relation to the Key Performance Indicators. Heads of 
Service will be in attendance at the meeting to respond to any questions raised in 
respect of the indicators and performance thereon 

 
6. Performance reports in respect of all other Best Value and Local Performance 

Indicators have been placed in the Members’ Room. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
7. To ensure that the Council monitors progress against its aim of achieving top quartile 

district council performance of 50% of its key performance indicators for 2006/07, and 
that proposals for corrective action are considered in respect of areas of current under-
performance. 

 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
8. None. The Council has previously agreed arrangements for monitoring progress 

against the key performance indicators. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
9. The performance data and proposals for corrective action compiled in this report have 

been submitted by each appropriate Head of Service. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: The respective Head of Service will identify the resource 
requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of current under-
performance set out in this report. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: None 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 18



KPI

Reference
Definition

BV2(b) The quality of an authority’s Race Equality Scheme and the improvements resulting from its

application

BV156 The percentage of authority buildings open to the public in which all public areas are suitable

for, and accessible to, disabled people

BV175 Racial incidents resulting in further action

LPI EH6 The percentage of licence applications processed within the statutory period

KPI

Reference
Definition

KPI

Reference
Definition

BV63 The average SAP rating of local authority owned dwellings

BV66(a) Rent collected by the local authority as a proportion of rents owed on housing revenue account

(HRA) dwellings

BV164 Does the authority follow the commission for Racial Equality's code of practice in rented

housing and the Good practice Standards for social landlords on tackling harassment included

in 'Tackling Racial Harassment' code of practice for social landlords

BV183(a) The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation of households that are

unintentionally homeless and in priority need

BV183(b) Average length of stay (weeks) in hostel accommodation of households that are unintentionally

homeless and in priority need

BV184a The proportion of local authority dwellings which were non-decent at the start of the financial

year

BV184(b) Percentage change in the proportion of non-decent Council dwellings between the start and

end of the year

BV212 Average number of days to re-let Council dwellings

LPI H15(a) The number of affordable homes completed and ready for occupation during the year

LPI H15(b) The amount of affordable housing required as part of Section 106 Agreements signed during

the year for all large residential development sites (in excess of 25 properties or 1 hectare),

KPI

Reference
Definition

BV8 The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority

within 30 days of receipt or within the agreed payment terms P. Maddock

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

A. Hall

A. Hall

C. Sobey

T. Tidey

J. Nolan

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

Collector

Customer Services, Media, Communications and Information Technology

Housing

Collector

Collector

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07

Community Wellbeing

Finance, Performance Management & Corporate Support Services

Collectorr

There are no KPIs for this Portfolio for 2006/07

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

S. Ford

T. Tidey

Page 19



BV9 The percentage of council tax collected by the Authority in the year

BV10 The percentage of non-domestic rates collected

BV11(a) The percentage of the top-paid 5% of the local authority's staff who are women

BV11(b) The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who are from an ethnic minority

BV11(c) The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who have a disability

BV12 The number of working days/shifts lost to the local authority due to sickness absence

BV14 The percentage of employees retiring early (excluding ill-health retirements) as a percentage of

the local authority's total work force

BV16(a) The percentage of local authority employees with a disability

BV17(a) The percentage of local authority employees from ethnic minority communities

BV78(a) The average time for processing new claims

BV78(b) The average time for processing notification of changes of circumstance

BV79(a) The percentage of cases for which the calculation of the amount of benefit due was correct on

the basis of the information available for the decision for a sample of cases checked post-

decision

KPI Reference Definition

BV82(a)(i) The percentage of household waste arisingswhich have been sent by the authority for

recycling

BV82(a)(ii) The total tonnage of household waste arisings which have been sent by the authority for

recycling

BV82(b)(i) The percentage of household waste sent by the authority for composting or treatment by

anaerobic digestion

BV82(b)(ii) The total tonnage of household waste sent by the authority for composting or treatment by

anaerobic digestion

BV84 Kilograms of household waste collected per head

BV91(a) Percentage of households served by kerbside collection of recyclables

BV166 Performance against environmental health service checklist

BV199(a) The proportion of relevant land and highways assessed as having combined deposits of litter

and detritus that fall below an acceptable level

BV199(b) The proportion of relevant land and highways at which unacceptable levels of graffiti are visible

BV199(c) The proportion of relevant land and highways at which unacceptable levels of fly-posting are

visible.

BV199(d) The year-on-year reduction in total number of incidents and increase in the total number of

enforcement actions taken to deal with fly-tipping

KPI Reference Definition

BV106 The percentage of new homes built on previously developed land
S. Bacon

D. Marsh

J. Gilbert

J. Gilbert

J. Gilbert

J. Twinn

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

J. Twinn

J. Twinn

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

R. Pavey

R. Pavey

T. Tidey

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

J. Nolan

J. Gilbert

Collector

Planning and Economic Development

Collector

Environmental Protection

Page 20



BV109(a) The percentage of major application determined within 13 weeks

BV109(b) The percentage of minor applications determined within 8 weeks

BV109(c) The percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

BV204 The number of planning appeal decisions allowed against the authority's decision to refuse

planning applications, as a percentage of the total number of planning appeals against

refusals of planning applications

KPI Reference Definition

BV170(a) The number of visits to/usages of local authority funded or part funded museums and galleries

in the area per 1,000 population

BV170(c) The number of pupils visiting museums and galleries in organised school groups

KPI Reference Definition

LPI CEM1(a) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year in relation to on-street parking

LPI CEM1(b) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year in relation to off-street parking

LPI CEM1(c) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of an informal

challenge

LPI CEM1(d) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of a formal

challenge to the Head of Environmental Services

LPI CEM1(e) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of a formal

challenge to the National Parking Adjudication Service

LPI CEM1(f) The percentage of challenges allowed against the issue of a Penalty Charge Notice during the

year.

LPI CEM1(g) The percentage of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year where collection was

obtained

KPI Reference Definition

A. Clear

A. Clear

B. Land

B. Land

B. Land

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

B. Land

Collector

There are no KPIs for this Portfolio for 2006/07

Leisure

Collector

Leader's Portfolio

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

Collector

Civil Engineering and Maintenance

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Finance and 
Performance Management Standing 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 15 August 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance  
 
Subject:  Staff Vacancies 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Peter Maddock – Assistant Head of Finance 

(Ext 4602) 
Committee Secretary:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the position regarding staff vacancies be noted. 
 
Report: 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The revenue outturn for 2005/06 presented to the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee on 19 June 2006 showed that both the General Fund and 
the Housing Revenue Account were underspent. It was noted that one of the main reasons 
for this underspend was the level of staff vacancies experienced during the financial year. 
The salaries underspend in 2005/06 was £530,000 (2.7%) when compared to the original 
budget. However this was an improvement on the previous year when the figures were 
£1,143,000 (5.9%). Appendix 1 shows this information broken down on a service by service 
basis. 
 
2. Presented with this information the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet 
Committee requested a report on vacancies be presented to this committee so that any long-
term trends could be highlighted.  This will be prepared for the next meeting. 
 
The Position Now 
 
3. The position as at the end of June 2006 when compared to the budget at month three 
showed a saving of £242,000, ((5.1%)Column 2 & 3 of the appendix), of this around a third 
relates to the Housing Revenue Account. At that date there were a total of 60 posts vacant. 
Some of these are being covered by temporary and agency staff, however some are vacant 
and have been for some time and this is likely to be for a variety of reasons. 
 
4. As a result of this situation each service area is being asked to review their staff 
establishment paying particular attention to any posts that have been vacant for over a year. 
Service areas have been asked which posts are vacant, for how long, and what the future 
plans for the posts are. The responses from services will be submitted to the next meeting. 
 
5. It is evident from the appendix 1 that Human Resources, ICT and the Works Unit 
show the largest variations. All three areas show variances in excess of 10%. In the case of 
ICT the appendix shows that not all posts in the restructure have yet been filled.  With regard 
to Human Resources, two posts within the performance management unit are currently 
vacant however recruitment to these positions is currently underway.   The Works Unit is 
currently taking steps to fill vacancies, using amongst other tools, trainees/apprentices. 
 
6. Following detailed consideration of the establishment review it should be possible to 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



identify the areas where long-term vacancies exist and what form of corrective action is 
necessary. 
 
Conclusion 
 
7. Members are asked to note the initial position. 
 
 
 

Page 24



S
A

L
A

R
Y

 U
N

D
E

R
S

P
E

N
D

A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

J
U

N
E

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
4
/0

5

S
E

R
V

IC
E

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

£
'0

0
0
's

%
£
'0

0
0
's

%
£
'0

0
0
's

%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
-6

-6
.9

9
3
.1

-3
7

-9
.6

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
-3

-5
.9

6
3
.0

-1
-0

.5

H
R

 &
 P

M
U

 *
-3

3
-3

1
.7

-1
4

-4
.0

-7
-2

.0

P
O

L
IC

Y
 U

N
IT

-1
4

-7
.4

-9
6

-1
1
.8

-2
1

-3
.2

L
E

G
A

L
,A

D
M

IN
 &

 E
S

T
A

T
E

S
 *

-3
-0

.8
-1

0
8

-7
.1

-9
1

-6
.5

F
IN

A
N

C
E

  
*

1
6

2
.3

1
7

0
.6

-9
2

-3
.6

IN
F

O
,C

O
M

M
 &

 T
E

C
H

-3
9

-1
7
.0

-9
2

-1
1
.9

-9
5

-1
4
.1

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

-2
4

-3
.2

-1
1
8

-4
.1

-9
5

-3
.5

P
U

B
L

IC
W

O
R

K
S

 U
N

IT
-5

6
-1

1
.8

5
2

3
.2

-2
4
3

-1
5
.7

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

-1
1

-1
.9

-9
7

-4
.4

-9
3

-3
.3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  

*
-3

2
-5

.8
-1

6
-0

.8
-8

2
-4

.6

L
E

IS
U

R
E

*
-3

7
-6

.1
-7

3
-1

.8
-2

8
6

-6
.6

T
O

T
A

L
-2

4
2

-5
.1

-5
3
0

-2
.7

-1
,1

4
3

-5
.9

*
A

g
e
n
c
y

c
o
s
ts

a
re

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

s
a
la

ri
e
s

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

.

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Report to: Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Standing 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 15 August 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject: Data Quality Audit and Value For Money Strategy 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 

 
(1) That the Council’s self-assessment submission in respect of the ‘Data 

Quality’ assessment to be undertaken by the Audit Commission, be 
endorsed;  

 
(2) That the Scrutiny Panel consider the Council’s draft Data Quality and Value 

For Money Strategies; and 
 
(3) That, subject to recommendation (2) above, the Cabinet be recommended 

that the draft Data Quality and Value For Money Strategies be adopted. 
 

Data Quality 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As the first stage of the 

audit of Best Value performance Indicators (BVPIs) for 2005/06, the Audit Commission 
is undertaking an assessment of the overall management arrangements of all local 
authorities to secure data quality. Although part of this assessment relates to the quality 
of performance information, the audit relates to corporate data quality arrangements, 
and is therefore a much wider issue than the BVPI audit.  

 
2. The audit is to be based on a self-assessment exercise and through on-site validation 

by the Commission. The audit will result in a scored judgement, as a result of a review 
of the following five themes and areas for audit focus: 

 

Review theme Audit focus 

Governance and 
leadership 

Is there a corporate framework of management and 
accountability for data quality, with a commitment to securing a 
culture of data quality throughout the organisation? 

Policies and 
procedures 

Are there appropriate policies and procedures in place to 
secure the quality of data recorded and reported by the 
organisation? 

Systems and 
processes 

Has the organisation put in place systems and processes that 
secure the quality of data as part of the normal business 

 Agenda Item 8

Page 27



 2

Review theme Audit focus 

activity of the organisation? 

People and skills Has the organisation put in place arrangements to ensure that 
all staff have the appropriate knowledge, competencies and 
capacity for their roles in relation to data quality? 

Data use Has the body put in place arrangements that are focused on 
ensuring that data supporting performance information is also 
used to manage and improve the delivery of services? 

 
3. For each theme area, the Commission has specified a number of Key Lines of Enquiry 

(KLOE) as a basis for councils to undertake a voluntary self-assessment of their current 
position with regard to data quality. Although the completion of a self-assessment was 
not a mandatory requirement for the purposes of the audit, the Commission considered 
that this exercise would be helpful for both the audit and for the Council to understand 
its current position. Management Board therefore determined that the Council should 
complete the voluntary self-assessment in relation to the Data Quality audit, and agree 
arrangements for undertaking the self-assessment process through a special meeting 
of all Heads of Service. If the Council had chosen not to participate in the self-
assessment exercise, it is likely that the Audit Commission would have assessed the 
authority’s management arrangements for data quality on the basis of previous audit 
work undertaken and existing perceptions of the authority.  

 
4. The draft self-assessment for the data Quality audit is attached as Appendix 1 to this 

report, and also sets out the audit KLOEs in detail. The timescale for the submission of 
the self-assessment element of this work is tight, and the completed self-assessment is 
required to be submitted to the Audit Commission following the meeting of the Scrutiny 
Panel. The results of the Data Quality audit will feed into the Council’s next Value for 
Money assessment, and also inform the second round of district council 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment. The results of the audit will also have a 
bearing on the BVPI audit, in that the sample of performance indicators to be subject of 
in-depth review will be determined partly by the risks elicited from the Data Quality 
audit.  

 
5. As a result of the audit, it is considered important for the Council to formalise its 

management arrangements in this area. The completion of the self-assessment has 
provided an opportunity to set out an overall corporate approach to ensuring data 
quality, through the development of a Data Quality Strategy, a draft version of which is 
attached as Appendix 2 to this report.  As performance information is increasingly being 
used for the external assessment of the authority’s performance, the strategy sets out a 
commitment to ensuring that arrangements for securing the quality of key data meet the 
highest standards, as consistent, accurate, timely and comprehensive information is 
vital to support effective decision-making and enhanced service provision.  

 
Value For Money 

 
6. In preparation for the forthcoming Value for Money assessment referred to in paragraph 

4 of this report, a need has been identified to bring together the various elements of the 
Council’s current approach to providing value for money services into a single 
comprehensive document. This has been achieved through the development of a 
corporate Value for Money Strategy, a draft version of which is attached as Appendix 3 
to this report for consideration by the Scrutiny Panel. The draft Strategy sets out 
authority’s overall approach to achieving value for money and allocates appropriate 
responsibilities at both member and officer level. 

 

Page 28



 3

 
7. The self-assessment element of the Value for Money exercise is required to be 

submitted to the Audit Commission by 30 September 2006, In view of this timescale, 
the Panel is asked to note that, once completed, the self-assessment will be presented 
to the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee for endorsement at 
its meeting on 25 September 2006, as there is no other scheduled meeting of the 
Scrutiny Panel before the submission deadline. 

 
8. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to endorse the content of the Council’s draft self-

assessment submission in respect of the Data Quality assessment, and to recommend 
to the Cabinet that the draft Data Quality and Value For Money Strategies be adopted. 
The results of the Data Quality assessment will be reported to a future meeting. 

 
Reason for decision: 
 
9. To ensure that the Council has put in place appropriate management arrangements to 

secure data quality and value for money. 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
10. To decline to complete the self–assessment, as a result of which the Audit Commission 

would have assessed the authority’s management arrangements for data quality on the 
basis of previous audit work undertaken and existing perceptions of the authority. 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
11. Management Board and Senior Management Team. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: None. 
Council Plan/Best Value Performance Plan reference: None 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

DATA QUALITY AUDIT - SELF ASSESSMENT

1. GOVERNANCE AND LEADERSHIP

Has the body put in place arrangements at a senior level to secure the quality of data
used to manage and report on performance?

Commentary Evidence

1.1 Responsibility for data quality is clearly defined

At member level, responsibility for data quality rests with the
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Performance Management and
Corporate Support Services, and the Finance and Performance
Management Cabinet Committee (DQ01). This body reports
into the Executive on matters relating to audit, performance and
governance. The Cabinet determines the Key Performance
Indicators for the authority on an annual basis and receives an
annual report on performance. The Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Standing Panel is responsible for
receiving quarterly reports on Best Value Performance
Indicator (BVPI) and Local Performance Indicator (LPI)
performance, and for challenging matters of data quality
(DQ02), (DQ03).

At officer level, responsibility for data quality rests with the Joint
Chief Executive (Resources). This post has responsibility
amongst other things for Internal Audit, the Performance
Management Unit, Information and Communications
Technology and the Finance function (DQ04).

Management Board has a general responsibility for data
quality, receiving reports on matters such as BVPI
performance, and plans for the improvement of performance of
individual performance indicators. As part of this process, data
provided by Heads of Service is scrutinised on matters of BVPI
performance and data quality (DQ05).

Heads of Service are responsible for data quality within their
individual services, and for formally agreeing the accuracy of
BVPI and LPI returns (DQ06). In addition specific Heads of
Service have defined roles as follows:

(i) The Head of Finance as Chief Financial Officer has
responsibility (Council Constitution (Section 12.04(e) Page
B32) for data quality with respect to the Council’s financial
regulations and processes (DQ07);

(ii) The Head of Information and Communications
Technology is responsible for the security of the authority’s ICT
function, the proper use of email and the internet, and for data
protection issues;

(iii) The Head of Legal, Administration and Estates is the

Council Constitution
(DQ01)

Cabinet Minutes (10.7.06)
(DQ02)

Finance and
Performance Management
Scrutiny Panel Minutes
(1.6.06) (DQ03)

Job Description for Joint
Chief Executive (DQ04)

Management Board
Minutes (17.5.06) (DQ05)

Data Quality Process for
BVPIs and LPIs (DQ06)

Articles of the Council’s
Constitution (DQ07)

Articles of the Council’s
Constitution (DQ08)

Page 31



Appendix 1

2

Commentary Evidence

Council’s Monitoring Officer and has responsibilities (Council
Constitution (Section 12.03(f)) (DQ08) for making available
executive decisions and for the provision of advice on matters
such as financial propriety, probity and the budget framework;

(iv) The Head of Human Resources and Performance
Management is responsible for the collection and presentation
of BVPI and LPI data in the Best Value Performance Plan and
Council Plan;

(v) The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for the delivery
of an annual audit plan within which issues of data quality
feature as appropriate (DQ09).

In addition to the responsibilities vested in individual Heads of
Service, the Council has introduced a data quality control
process for the production of BVPI and LPI data. A designated
officer is responsible for the production of data for each
indicator, and the process sets out defined responsibilities for
cross checking data, and for sign-off by the Head of Service or
nominated senior manager. The Internal Audit unit has carries
out annual audits on the process with respect to performance
indicators (DQ10).

The Council Plan for 2006 to 2010 stresses the importance of
data quality, and one of the authority’s key themes within this
document is the commitment to high standards of data quality
(DQ11).

All staff regularly receive training on data quality issues through
a comprehensive ICT training programme. New staff are
required to attend an ‘Introduction to ICT ’ course, which
stresses the importance of data quality. In addition, the Council
has adopted Essex County Council’s competency framework
for training and development purposes. Competency No. 7
(Using and Managing Resources) includes the requirement to
‘understand and conform to the legislative, ethical and
procedural requirements in relation to information security,
collection, storage and disposal’. This is supported by
Competency No. 4 (Analysis and Judgement), which states
‘seeks out relevant information for problem solving and
decision making’ (DQ12).

Annual Audit Plan (DQ09)

Data Quality Process for
BVPIs/LPIs (DQ06)

Internal Audit report on
performance indicator data
quality (DQ10)

Council Plan (Paragraph
15.2) (DQ11)

Corporate Training
Programme (DQ12)

1.2 The body has clear data quality objectives

Page 32



Appendix 1

3

Commentary Evidence

The Council states its commitment to data quality in its new
Council Plan for 2006/07 (DQ11), which is the strategic
planning document for the authority. The commitment to data
quality is key to the authority’s ability to respond quickly to
changes in performance, taking corrective action in response to
accurate and timely data. The annual Best Value Performance
Plan (BVPP) (DQ13) supports this, where it is stated that the
Council seeks to ‘continually improve the accuracy, timeliness
and cost effectiveness of payments‘. The BVPP also notes that
in 2005/06 the Council achieved its aim of introducing quarterly
financial monitoring reports to the Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel, thus providing the scrutiny
function with greater opportunities to comment on and
challenge financial data (DQ14).

The Council has produced a draft Value for Money Strategy,
which emphasises the need for clear and accurate data on unit
costs and performance in order to assess whether the Council
achieves value for money in the services that it provides
(DQ15).

With respect to BVPI data, the Council’s data quality objectives
are not only that all data should be accurate and independently
verifiable, but also that this should be used as a tool to drive up
performance and ensure that top quartile district council
performance is achieved for 50% of the KPIs (DQ02)

At the operational level, the authority has a number of data
quality objectives appropriate to the service provided. For
example, our leisure management contract requires the
contractor to provide accurate and verifiable statistical data in
relation to numerous performance measures, as a condition of
receiving payment under the contract (DQ16).

A number of front line services have achieved ISO 9001
accreditation, and this process requires the Council to produce
clear data quality objectives. Equally, Legal Services has
recently achieved LEXCEL accreditation and there is a
requirement for clear reporting lines for data quality in this
process (DQ17).

As noted at 1.1 above, the Council has a clear member and
officer structure with respect to data quality. The Finance and
Performance Management Cabinet Committee is responsible
for receiving reports from the Audit Commission and Internal
Audit, to consider risk management issues and be responsible
for corporate performance management.

The Council has set quality standards and targets for ensuring
that BVPI and LPI data is accurate and produced in a timely
fashion. This has been communicated to all staff with
responsibility for the production of this information.  Our
performance in respect of LPIs is subject to annual internal
audit. Training on a new performance management system
(Ten Performance Manager) has recently been completed.

Council Plan (Paragraph
15.2 (DQ11)

Best Value Performance
Plan (Page 47) (DQ13)

Example Quarterly
Financial Monitoring
Report (DQ14)

Draft Value for Money
Strategy (DQ15)

Cabinet Minutes (10.7.06)
(DQ02))

Leisure Management
Contract (Performance
Measures) (DQ16)

Legal Services Quality
Manual (DQ17)

Data Quality Process for
BVPIs and LPIs (DQ06)

‘Ten’ System User Manual
(DQ18)

(DC5)
Page 33



Appendix 1

4

Commentary Evidence

1.3 The body has effective arrangements for monitoring and review of data quality

As noted above, the Council has implemented a quality
assurance process for the collection of BVPI and LPI data. The
LPI arrangements have been subject to internal audit on an
annual basis for the last two years. The findings of the audit
have been discussed by Senior Management Team to ensure
that the recommendations are fully understood and acted upon.
(DQ19) The external audit of BVPIs has been discussed by
Management Board.

The Council has recently introduced a new Performance
Management IT system (Ten Performance Manager) in
recognition of the fact that its reliance on spreadsheet systems
posed a risk, and did not produce the analysis of data required
(DQ20). The introduction of this system has been supported by
staff training and the production of a comprehensive user
manual (DQ18)

Data quality has been identified as a risk at service level. For
example, the Finance Service has reorganised its
arrangements for the issuing of bus passes by centralising
activities to ensure improved data quality. Previously bus
passes had been issued from a dozen different locations using
a mix of temporary staff and local councillors, who would then
provide returns and data for central compilation. The quality of
the data received was variable and the database of
passholders was not regarded as reliable. To address these
issues a centralised system has been introduced using postal
applications. This has proved a more efficient system and
greatly enhanced the quality of the data held (DQ21).

The Scrutiny process is charged at member level with the
monitoring and review of data quality. An example is the
former Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3, which was
responsible for the scrutiny of corporate health BVPIs.
Interrogation of sickness data (BV8) led to a review of the way
this information was collected and recorded, which in turn
provided accurate information on performance, training for
managers and better performance. (DQ22)

BVPI and LPI performance is monitored by the Finance and
Performance Management Scrutiny Panel each quarter.
(DQ03) In addition Heads of Service meet with the respective
portfolio holders to discuss performance information on a
quarterly basis, and all members have access to performance
data through schedules deposited in the Members’ Room. The
Cabinet is required to review overall performance annually, and
to set performance targets for KPIs (DQ02). In addition to the
officer process, reference has already been made to the
scrutiny role carried out by Heads of Service and Management
Board (DQ05).

Senior Management Team
Minutes (7.7.06) (DQ19)

Cabinet Report (10.10.05)
(DQ20)

‘Ten’ System User Manual
(DQ18)

Cabinet Report (19.12.05)
(DQ21)

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (3) Minutes
(22.7.04) (DQ22)

Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny
Panel Minutes (1.6.06)
(DQ03)

Cabinet Minutes (10.7.06)
(DQ02)

Management Board
Minutes (17.5.06) (DQ05)

Page 34



Appendix 1

5

2. POLICIES

Has the organisation defined its expectations and requirements in relation to data
quality?

Commentary Evidence

2.1 A policy is in place, supported by a current set of operational procedures and
guidance

As noted above, the Council has an operational Data Quality
procedure in place to assure the quality of BVPIs and LPIs.
This is designed to support the objective of accurate and timely
data production so that performance can be managed in a
timely and effective way. The procedures include a
requirement for Head of Service scrutiny and authorisation of
all performance data, together with cross checking of
calculations by a person independent of this process. In
signing off PI data Heads of Service are required to satisfy
themselves that all relevant data has been considered, and that
there is a clear audit trail to support the calculations (DQ23).
These processes have continued following the introduction of
the ‘Ten’ performance system, which in itself provides a clear
audit trail with respect to the entering of PI data.

This is supported at service level by the quality assurance
processes required by national standards such as ISO 9001
and LEXCEL, the latter being set out on the Council’s intranet
for the benefit of legal staff. In addition, the Council introduced
a new Committee Management System (‘CoMS’), which
ensures that data relating to the democratic process is
published in a timely and accurate way. An example of this
concerns the ability of the system to track member attendance
at meetings, and for the accurate publishing of committee
minutes.

In the Housing Service all of the latest user manuals for Anite
Housing (the social housing system used by the Council) are
published on line via the Anite website and are available to
download at any time. Anite ensure that the documents are
always up to date. In addition, the service has instigated a
back up and recovery plan to ensure continuity in the event of
long-term staff absence. Should this happen the contractor has
agreed to provide a complete service to maintain the software
and manage day-to-day processing needs.

Data Quality Process for
BVPIs and LPIs (DQ6)

BVPI/LPI Quarterly
Summary Control Form
(DQ23(a))

BVPI/LPI Annual Summary
Control Form (DQ23(b))

2.2 Policies and procedures are followed by staff and applied consistently throughout
the organisation

All staff that are responsible for the collation of performance
data have a copy of the procedures via the intranet. Training
has recently been completed on the ‘Ten’ system and Heads of
Service and managers are required to ensure that all relevant
staff have training in the quality assurance procedures.

At a local level the procedures used within individual services,
for example Legal Service’s procedures for data quality are

Legal Services Quality
Manual (DQ24)

Page 35



Appendix 1

6

Commentary Evidence

available to all relevant staff (DQ24).

Compliance with corporate procedures is monitored by the
Performance Management Unit on a quarterly basis. In
addition, Management Board have an overview of compliance
with the process and issues of non compliance are considered
at this level via the annual internal audit monitoring report as
well as exception reporting where necessary (DQ25).

Management Board
Minutes (5.7.060 (DQ25)

3. SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES

Are there effective systems and processes in place to secure the quality of data?

Commentary Evidence

3.1 There are appropriate systems in place for the collection, recording, analysis and
reporting of the data used to monitor performance, and staff are supported in their use
of these systems

The quality assurance system for the collation of BVPI and LPI
data has been described above. The annual internal audit
report has identified some areas for improvement and these
have been agreed at Senior Management Team (SMT) for
implementation throughout the services. The inclusion of these
internal audit reports in the Annual Audit Plan and the
subsequent discussion of the findings by SMT illustrate the
importance placed upon them by the Council. Equally, the
quarterly system of scrutiny illustrates the importance placed
upon this at Member level.

Staff are supported in using the ‘Ten’ performance
management system by the Performance Management Unit
(who effectively provide a help desk facility), and by the Head
of Human resources and Performance Management. In
addition, the recent training on the ‘Ten’ system covered wider
issues of data quality, thus re-emphasising the Council’s
commitment to support for staff working in this area.

Although the internal audit reports have found failings of
compliance with the system, these issues for improvement
have been welcomed by both Management Board and Heads
of Service, who seek to foster a ‘right first time’ approach to
data quality.

The arrangements for collecting and reporting data are
integrated into the Council’s performance management
framework, which starts at the strategic level with the Council
Plan and works down to individual staff targets, which are
monitored via the annual Staff Development Review process.
(DQ26)

Over the last three years the Council has reviewed the format
and content of its PI data, consulting both officers and
members on the information that should be included in
committee reports and other documents. This has led to

Performance Management
Framework as set out in
Staff Development Review
Process (DQ26)

Works Unit Local
Agreement (DQ27)

Page 36



Appendix 1

7

Commentary Evidence

ongoing improvements in data presentation.
In the Works Unit a review of data quality related to staff
working on out of hours emergency work showed that the
recording systems were overly complex and required
unnecessary detail, for the proper authorisation of payments.
This led to successful negotiations with the trade unions to
simplify payment arrangements, with the result that data
recording was simplified and became easier to use. (DQ27)

The Council has well-established policies for IT security, Data
Protection and the acceptable usage of IT systems.
All new systems are introduced via the Council’s ICT Strategy
and implemented using PRINCE2 project methodology. This
approach ensures that all stakeholders are included in the
process of specification, design and implementation of IT
systems (DQ33).

ICT Policies - IT Security
(DQ33(a)), Data Protection
(DQ33(b)), Acceptable
Usage (DQ33(c))

3.2 The body has appropriate controls in place to ensure that information systems
secure the quality of data used to report on performance

The Council has a comprehensive annual audit plan, the
outputs of which are reports and management action plans.
(DQ9) This work is reviewed by the Finance and Performance
Management Cabinet Committee at member level (DQ34), and
by Management Board/Heads of Service at officer level.

A Business and Internal Control Assurance Process to support
the Statement on Internal Control (QC35) has been drafted and
is currently under consideration.

There are a range of controls built into systems to minimise the
scope for error, for example within Planning Services where a
policies are in place to deal with the quality of data, particularly
to ensure that changes are tracked and auditable (DQ51).

The Chief Internal Auditor prepares an annual Internal Audit
Report to the Council, which includes an opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the authority's internal control
environment. The annual audit report considers key risks
facing the Council, the adequacy of controls in place to address
them, and draws attention to any issues particularly relevant to
the preparation of the Statement on Internal Control. In
addition, the Council is also proactive in strengthening its
performance information system controls. The adequacy of
these controls is assessed by Members and Management
Board, who approve a Statement of Internal Control. Heads of
Service also provide statements on adequacy of controls in
their service.

PI data is quality assured by service level management before
being reported to Management Board and members, as noted
above

Annual Audit Plan (DQ9)

Finance and Performance
Management Cabinet
Committee Minutes
(19.6.06) (DQ34)

Statement on Internal
Control 2005/06 (DQ35)

Planning Data Change
Control Policy (DQ51)

Page 37



Appendix 1

8

Commentary Evidence

3.3 Security arrangements for performance information systems are robust, and
business continuity plans are in place

The Council has a Corporate Business Continuity Plan that
addresses the recovery of all Corporate ICT facilities in the
event of major system outage. The Council is currently
constructing a second computer suite to ensure a more timely
recovery from major IT system incidents (DQ36)

All services have produced business continuity plans which set
out identified risks to business continuity and appropriate
responses. Additionally, all Service Plans are required to
identify risks associated with service delivery, and put
appropriate controls in place where possible (DQ37).

The Council’s IT systems are protected by password log-ins,
and key systems are protected by further elements of access
control, for example the Human Resources/Payroll database.
Servers and other related systems are backed up every night,
and backed-up data is secured in fireproof storage locally and
taken to a remote (outside of the District) location three times a
week. Critical business systems (e.g. financial and security
systems) are checked regularly by internal audit, with reports
made to the Head of Service and Management Board).

Procedure notes and/or appropriate training materials are
provided for all key systems (DQ38).

Corporate Business
Continuity Plan (DQ36)

Example Service Plan
(Revenues) (DQ37)

Example Procedure Note
(DQ38)

3.4 An effective management framework for data sharing is in place

The Council participated in the National Fraud Initiative in 2004
and complied with agreed protocols for the submission of data.
We have analysed the data quality summary feedback from the
Audit Commission, and were pleased to note the very high
level of compliance (DQ39).

The Council is a Member of the Essex Information Group (EIG)
that developed and implemented the Essex Trust Charter
across public sector bodies within Essex. The Charter sets out
a clear protocol for the exchange of data between one or more
public sector organisations. It requires both parties to consider
and agree the purpose, source, legality, quality and retention of
data that is to be exchanged and creates a clear written
understanding between all parties before any actual data
sharing takes place.

NFI Summary Feedback
(DQ39)

4. PEOPLE AND SKILLS

Does the organisation have the resources in place to secure data quality?

Commentary Evidence

4.1 The body has communicated clearly the responsibilities of staff, where applicable,
for achieving data quality

Page 38



Appendix 1

9

Commentary Evidence

All person specifications identify the skills required of the
postholder, including education and training requirements and
ICT skills, where appropriate (DQ40). The staff development
review process (DQ26) considers training needs for individuals
annually, including those relating to data quality and
management.

Designated staff in each service are responsible for Data
Protection and Freedom of Information issues (FOI), and
training has been provided for such staff, along with other staff
who have similar responsibilities. A FOI group has met
regularly to share best practice and common issues. (DC40)
The corporate training programme provides regular courses on
Data Protection, and the Head of Research and Democratic
Services has responsibility for day-to-day Freedom of
Information issues. In addition, the corporate induction course
contains aspects relating to FOI and data protection.

Example Person
Specification (DQ40)

Staff Development Review
process (DQ26)

Minutes of FOI Group
meeting (DQ41)

4.2 The organisation has arrangements in place to ensure that staff with data quality
responsibility have the necessary skills

See our comments at Section 4.1 above. In addition, all new
staff are expected to attend the ‘Introduction to ICT at EFDC’
course offered in the corporate training programme (DQ12). As
part of their on the job training staff also receive induction
training in their place of work, including local arrangements for
data quality and management. In the Works Unit staff received
basic skills training (reading/writing/maths) to provide them with
the necessary skills to ensure they can accurately record their
work performance.

Data related training in the corporate training programme
includes courses on intranet administration, website and
business applications, basic computer literacy, business
objects, financial reporting, data protection, report writing,
Excel, and Word. Every course is evaluated by the Human
Resources unit and/or ICT, along with delegates themselves.

The Council’s staff development review process identifies
training needs and these are analysed by the Head of Human
Resources on an annual basis to ensure that courses provided
meet the Authority’s data management and quality needs. In
addition the Head of ICT also reviews the ICT training needs
identified each year.

A training officer is employed in the Benefits Service to ensure
that all staff performing benefit work have the necessary skills.
Individual tailored programmes are provided for new members
of staff, depending on their experience and qualification. In
addition to this existing staff receive training on changes in
legislation and DWP requirements.

As mentioned above, staff with specific responsibilities for the
collation of PI data have received written guidance and

Corporate Training
Programme (DQ12)

Page 39



Appendix 1

10

Commentary Evidence

helpdesk support from the Performance Management Unit. In
addition, such staff have recently received training on the new
TEN performance system, along with a reminder about the
stringent requirements with respect to the collation of PI data.
(DC5), (DC18)

All training courses are evaluated to ensure that they are fit for
purpose and meet the Council’s data management needs.

The Council is currently implementing an Electronic Records
and Document Management System (ERDMS) across all
service areas. This project by definition will apply a single
corporate records management policy to ensure a consistent
approach to the data quality of all record systems. Staff are
receiving specific record management training as part of the
ERDMS implementation (DQ42).

ERDMS Project (DQ42)

5. DATA USE

Are there effective arrangements and controls in place for the use of data by the
organisation?

Commentary Evidence

5.1 The body has put in place arrangements that are focused on ensuring that data
supporting performance information is also used to manage and improve the delivery
of services

Consideration of Local Land Charges performance data led the
Head of Service to review the way the service was provided. In
addition, the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny
Standing Panel scrutinised the work of the Land Charges
Section in order to understand the reasons for performance
difficulties, and to work with the Head of Service on solutions.
(DQ3)

Within Planning Services, performance information that is
collected for BVP/109 is used on a bi-weekly basis to discuss
ongoing performance with case officers, to ensure they are
aware of how their decision performance influences this
measure, and to identify applications that are in danger of
missing their deadline.

Furthermore, Planning Services also use the data being
collected for BVP/109 to allow senior officers to assess the
caseload of officers when allocating work. These reports are
also available to officers for use in managing their own
workload. In addition, Senior Management in Planning
Services meet with staff on a bi-weekly to discuss performance
issues highlighted, these discussions utilise information
collected for BVP/109 and are used to identify reasons why
applications have been decided late.

The Council has implemented a number of IT systems to
capture (at source) various performance metrics regarding the

Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny
Panel Minutes (1.6.06)
(DQ3)

CSTP report (DQ43)

Page 40



Appendix 1

11

Commentary Evidence

use of IT based systems. These include data that relates to the
use of Email, Internet and telephones. This has greatly assisted
the Council in improving service delivery and developing new
service delivery methodologies; for example the current
Customer Services Transformation Programme (CSTP) has
made strategic use of customer call data in order to assess the
Councils current performance and gauge the impact of
remodelling the current customer services approach (DQ43).

In the Housing Service some PIs are collated on a monthly or
fortnightly basis (where they are of critical importance, such as
rent arrears and void loss). This enables management to
identify any issues of concern quickly and act on them (DQ44).

Another example of where use of data has led to improvement
in services concerns data relating to homelessness
approaches. A report considered by the Cabinet in April 2006
uses data on this matter to make a successful case for
additional homelessness prevention resource (DQ45).

In the Works Unit, a Building Maintenance Performance
Management Policy is in place, which clearly links data quality
with tenant satisfaction and the performance of operatives.
Data on performance is analysed and corrective action taken
where appropriate (DQ46).

In addition, mention has already been made of the scrutiny of
BVPI sickness data, which led to a review of data recording
and collection, and has led to an improvement in performance.

Under the LEXCEL accreditation system, Legal Services are
required to meet regularly with clients to discuss the service
provided and make improvements. This was identified as an
area of good practice by the independent LEXCEL assessor.

Members receive performance data on a quarterly basis at the
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. This
includes PI and financial information, along with scrutiny of the
performance of a specific service such as Local Land Charges
and Planning Services (DQ48).

The Council regularly submits performance returns to a variety
of government departments including the Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP) and the Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG), such as P1Es in Housing, PS2s in
Planning and CIPFA data. As noted above, performance data
is submitted quarterly to Management Board and the Finance
and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. It is submitted
annually to Cabinet.

Performance management systems also include qualitative
data from our compliments and complaints process. This is
reported to members via the Members’ Bulletin (DQ49).
Additionally mechanisms for gathering and assessing customer

Housing Revenue Account
Business Plan (Section
9.3) (DQ44)

Cabinet Report (10.1.06)
(DQ45)

Building Maintenance
Performance Management
Policy (DQ46)

Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny
Panel Agenda (1.6.06)
(DQ48)

Members' Bulletin (DQ49)

Page 41



Appendix 1

12

Commentary Evidence

satisfaction include the use of satisfaction cards.

5.2 The body has effective controls in place for data reporting

Reference has already been made to the quality assurance
process for BVPIs and LPIs, and the annual audit work which
tests compliance with this. Examples of data submitted on a
timely basis include the annual BVPP and Statement of
Accounts. The Council has recently reviewed its controls for
the clearance of agendas, including the establishment of
agenda planning process for both the Executive and Scrutiny
functions. This provides a control mechanism for the
publishing of data (DQ50).

The Council has definitions for all KPIs and BVPIs, and as
noted above all data returns are supported by an audit trail
which is verified both internally and by external audit.

There is an established timetable for the submission of data
each quarter, and this is currently being reviewed with the
introduction of the ‘Ten’ performance management system.
Missed deadlines are reported to Management Board.

Data is verified by the Head of Service before submission to
Management Board and members. Management Board and
members scrutinise the data carefully, and as noted above,
often request improvement actions or plans.

Cabinet Agenda Planning
process (DQ50)

Page 42



Appendix 2 

1 

Version 4 - 3 August 2006 
 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DATA QUALITY STRATEGY 

 

1. Introduction 

 

 The Council recognises the importance of good quality data.  Consistent, accurate, 

timely and comprehensive information is vital to facilitate the Council's decision-

making process and to deliver better quality services to our customers. 

 

 The purpose of this strategy is to set out the Council's approach to improving data 

quality.  We recognise the increasing importance placed upon data as a tool for 

assessing our performance, and achieving our aims and targets.  We also recognise 

the important role that the Audit Commission has in terms of performance monitoring 

as a way of establishing compliance with external requirements and challenging 

current practice.  This strategy seeks to achieve a co-ordinated approach to ensure 

consistently high standards are achieved both within and across services with 

respect to data quality.  The outcomes expected from the adoption of this strategy 

are that Council data will be accurate and verifiable and that all staff will know the 

part they play in this process. 

 

2. Our Strategy Statement – Principles of Good Data Quality 

 

 The Council will seek to ensure that the following principles are adhered to and that 

staff understand and act on them: 

 

• understanding and awareness:  that all staff recognise the need for high 

standards of data quality and their individual roles in achieving this; 

 

• understanding data definitions:  that all appropriate staff are aware of the 

precise definition of data collected, be this nationally or locally determined, 

and that clear definitions support the data used by the Council; 

 

• data input:  that only authorised staff have responsibilities for data input, that 

the input of data takes place on a timely and regular basis, and that there are 

appropriate controls to achieve this; 

Page 43



Appendix 2 

2 

 

• data verification:  that there are corporate verification processes in place 

which are adhered to by all staff involved in the data collection process, and 

that these procedures are appropriately located within services close to the 

point of input; 

 

• systems:  these must be suitable for their purpose, staff must have the 

appropriate training and expertise to use them, and they must be regularly 

reviewed on a risk assessment basis; 

 

• output of data:  the used data by the Council must be extracted in a way that 

ensures there is a clear data trail, it is regularly extracted and communicated 

in a timely manner;  and 

 

• presentation:  that Council data is presented in a way which is easy to 

understand, is accurate and can lead to the drawing of conclusions, both for 

internal use, external inspectorates and our customers.   

 

3. Responsibilities for Data Quality 
 
(a) Member Level 
 

(i) The Executive 

 

 The Cabinet is responsible for the Council's overall approach to data quality in its 

role in the setting of policy and strategy. 

 

 The Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee is responsible for 

receiving reports from the Audit Commission and Internal Audit Service with respect 

to data quality, to consider risk management issues and be responsible for corporate 

performance management. 

 

 Individual Portfolio Holders are responsible for the data quality issues in their 

services, and ensuring that services have appropriate data quality processes in 

place. 

 

Page 44



Appendix 2 

3 

 (ii) The Scrutiny Process 

 

 The Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel is responsible for 

scrutinising data quality.   It is also responsible for reports and information about 

data quality issues within services.  Through the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel reports to the Cabinet on 

these matters. 

 

 (b) Officer Level 
 
 (i) Management Board 

 

 Management Board has oversight of all data quality issues at officer level in the 

Council.  As part of this process it will receive regular reports on data quality and 

associated performance issues, and will challenge the accuracy/veracity of this.  It is 

also responsible for agreeing improvement plans for data quality matters which do 

not require member approval. 

 

 (ii) The Joint Chief Executive (Resources) 
 

 This postholder has overall responsibility for data quality issues at officer level.   

 

 (iii) Heads of Service – General Responsibilities 

 

 Heads of Service have full responsibility for the quality of data within their individual 

services, and must appoint appropriate officers to discharge data quality functions, 

as necessary. 

 

 (iv) Heads of Service – Specific Individual Responsibilities 

 

• the Head of Finance as Chief Financial Officer has responsibility for data 

quality with respect to the Council's financial regulations, systems and 

processes; 

 

Page 45



Appendix 2 

4 

• the Head of ICT is responsible for the security policy for the authority's ICT 

function, the proper use of e-mail and internet data, and for data protection 

issues; 

 

• the Head of Legal, Administration and Estates is the Council's Monitoring 

Officer and has responsibilities for making available executive decisions and 

for the provision of advice on matters such as financial proprietary, probity 

and the budget framework.  The Head of Research and Democratic Services 

is Deputy Monitoring Officer; 

 

• the Head of Research and Democratic Services is responsible for Freedom of 

Information Act Data Quality issues; 

 

• the Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for the delivery of an annual Audit 

Plan within which issues of data quality will feature strongly as appropriate. 

 

 (v) Data Inputters in Individual Services 

 

 These staff are responsible for ensuring that the data they input is accurate, is 

inputted on a timely basis, and is verifiable in the audit process. 

 

 (vi) All Staff 
 

 All staff are responsible for ensuring that they understand the Council's data quality 

strategy and objectives so far as these apply to their role.  They are responsible for 

understanding the importance of accurate and verifiable data and the part that they 

may play in the Council's data quality processes.  Responsibilities should be set out 

in Job Descriptions and be discussed in SDRs where appropriate. 

 

4. KEY ELEMENTS IN THE DELIVERY OF THE DATA QUALITY STRATEGY 
 
 (i) Maintenance and Improvement of Data Quality Systems 

 

 Responsibility for maintaining a robust control environment for information systems 

lies within Services. 

 

Page 46



Appendix 2 

5 

 Each system should have a named officer responsible for data quality issues.  The 

responsible officer is required to ensure that: 

 

• users are adequately trained, where appropriate by having a formal training 

programme which is periodically evaluated and adapted to respond to 

changing needs; 

 

• there is security of access/amendment; 

 

• periodic tests of the integrity of data are undertaken; 

 

• information management and support is available to users; 

 

• system upgrades are made where necessary; 

 

• the system meets managers' information needs; 

 

• feedback from users is acted upon; 

 

• the system can produce adequate audit trails; 

 

• actions recommended by system reviews (e.g. by the external auditors) are 

implemented; 

 

• a set of written procedures (user guide) exists for the purpose of entering and 

extracting data;  and 

 

• a business continuity plan for the system exists to protect vital records and 

data. 

 

 There should also be a named substitute officer who can deputise in the data quality 

lead's absence by (at least) maintaining the day-to-day functionality of the system.  It 

is also essential that written procedures are designed so that another officer can 

carry out the procedures essential to providing data if the officer who normally 

performs these duties is absent. 

 

Page 47



Appendix 2 

6 

 There will sometimes be systems where work has to be undertaken to rectify gaps in 

the control environment.  To identify these systems there needs to be an evaluation 

of information systems used in the Council to produce data.  Individual services are 

responsible for this function, including the undertaking of risk assessments of 

systems, where required. 

 

 There are a number of conditions that might lead to a system being considered 

high-risk and every system needs to be considered against these factors.  'High risk' 

conditions will include: 

 

• a high volume of data/transactions; 

• technically complex data definition/guidance; 

• problems identified in previous years; 

• inexperienced staff involved in data processing/production; 

• a system being used to produce new data; and 

• known gaps in the control environment 

 

 The purpose of undertaking a risk assessment is to target limited resources at the 

areas that require most attention. 

 

 Where high-risk systems have been identified for attention, the following steps will 

need to be taken: 

 

• analysis of the control environment; 

• identification of gaps; 

• design of additional controls and procedures to address gaps; 

• preparation of an action plan;  and 

• monitoring the implementation of the action plan 

 

 (ii) Procedures for verifying data – guidance 

 

 Data requirements should be designed along the principle of 'getting it right first time' 

in order to avoid waste in the form of time and money spent on cleansing data, 

interfacing between different information systems, matching and consolidating data 

from multiple databases and maintaining outdated systems. 

 

Page 48



Appendix 2 

7 

 Nevertheless, in complex systems, even where there are strong controls over input, 

errors can creep in.  Where it is needed, a verification procedure should exist close 

to the point of data input.  The frequency of verification checks will need to be 

aligned with the frequency of data reporting. 

 

 The simplest verification system might be a review of recent data against 

expectations, or a reconciliation of systems-produced data with manual input 

records.  Depending on the complexity of the system, it might be necessary to 

undertake more thorough verification tasks, such as: 

 

• data cleansing, e.g. to remove duplicate records or to fill in missing 

information; 

 

• sample checks to eliminate reoccurrence of a specific error, e.g. checking one 

key field of data against documentation, for a sample of cases; 

 

• test run of report output, to check the integrity of the query being used to 

extract data;  and 

 

• spot checks, e.g. on external contractor information 

 

 Particular attention needs to be paid to data provided by external sources.  For 

example a number of PIs are calculated using information provided by contractors 

and the Council's intention must be to work alongside contractors to ensure that 

such data is accurate. 

 

 When entering into contracts with service providers it is essential that, wherever 

relevant, there is a requirement to provide timely and accurate data, and that we are 

clear with the contractor about their responsibilities for data quality and how we will 

be checking the information they provide. 

 

 It might not always be possible to alter existing contracts so that contractors are fully 

committed to providing an agreed quantity or quality data.  In this case, the data 

must be treated as high-risk and thought must be given to establishing a system of 

checks and measures to ensure that we are confident about the accuracy of this 

data.  When carrying out checks on such information it is important that this is 

documented and signed off by the relevant officer. 

Page 49



Appendix 2 

8 

 

 Some important data – for example, road safety and crime statistics – is provided 

directly to the Council by external agencies.  The initial priority of this strategy is to 

address shortcomings in information provided directly by and to us, but where 

concerns exist about the integrity of externally-provided information, the Council's 

intention is to work with other agencies constructively wherever possible to provide 

assurance and rectify any problems identified. 

 

 (iii) Inputting of data 

 

 There must be adequate controls over the input of data.  Systems-produced figures 

are only as good as the data input into that system in the first place.  The aim should 

be 100% accuracy 100% of the time.  It is important that officers have clear 

guidelines and procedures for using systems and are adequately trained to ensure 

that information is being entered consistently and correctly. 

 

 A key requirement is that data should be entered on an ongoing basis, not saved up 

to be entered in a block at the end of a period.  This reduces the error rate and the 

need for complex verification procedures. 

 

 Controls should also be in place to avoid double-counting.  These should be 

designed according to the nature of the system, in particular where more than one 

person inputs data.  A likely control will be an absolutely clear division of 

responsibility setting out who is responsible for what data entry. 

 

 The system must also record all relevant information.  Individual systems need to be 

evaluated to determine whether additional controls are necessary.  An additional 

control would be necessary if there is any way, theoretically, that a relevant case 

could exist without being captured by the current system. 

 

 (iv) Data output 
 

 Data must be produced to a timetable, which allows for management action and 

review.  Services must ensure that processes exist to obtain data output to this 

timetable, without compromising data quality. 

 

Page 50



Appendix 2 

9 

 It is important that data is subject to scrutiny and to challenge before being passed 

up the line for management/member action.  This can be undertaken at several 

stages in the process.  The most likely instances will be a verification check on 

output reports as part of a service level review of data. 

 

 (v) Presentation of data 

 

 When information is presented for management review, action or audit an officer 

must carry out an independent review of working papers to confirm that the data 

definition has been followed, the calculations are correct and the data is supported 

by a full audit trail. 

 

5. BVPI/LPI DATA QUALITY 
 

 The principles of the data quality strategy set out in Section 4 apply fully to the 

collection of PI data. 

 

 (i) Responsibilities 
 

• The Cabinet is responsible for the establishment of an annual set of key 

performance indicators, which reflect the Council's core business. 
 

• Individual Portfolio Holders are responsible for data quality issues with 

respect to PIs in their services, and ensuring appropriate data quality 

processes are in place. 
 

• The Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel is responsible for 

the Scrutiny of PI data, including issues of data quality. 
 

• Management Board receives reports on at least an annual basis on 

performance indicator information, challenging this, and agreeing 

improvement plans for individual indicators. 
 

• Heads of Service are responsible for agreeing quarterly PI returns and end of 

year outturn figures within the PI verification framework. 
 

Page 51



Appendix 2 

10 

• Performance Indicator Responsible Officers in services must ensure, under 

the direction of the relevant Head of Service, that all data relating to 

performance information is accurate, verifiable and is easily auditable.  They 

are responsible for ensuring the timely completion on a quarterly basis of PI 

information for the Head of Service. 
 

• Data inputters in services are responsible to the Service PI responsible officer 

for ensuring data related to PIs is accurate, verifiable and implemented in a 

timely fashion. 

 

• The Head of Human Resources and Performance Management is 

responsible for the overall collection and presentation of PI data in the Best 

Value Performance Plan of Council Plan, and for reporting these to Council 

Committees. 
 

 (ii) Data Quality Procedures for Collecting and Managing PI Information 
 
 Heads of Service and other responsible officers must follow the guidance laid down 

by the PMU for PI data collection.  This stipulates that a PMU proforma , 

accompanied by a full audit trail, must be compiled for any PI presented on a 

quarterly basis.  This must include: 

 

• A detailed calculation 

 

• System notes, where appropriate; and 

 

• Documentation supporting any estimates, sampling, or any apportionments 

made. 

 

In addition, the relevant officer must complete the appropriate 'fields' on the TEN 

system, including a comment on performance, any corrective action to be taken to 

improve performance, and a quarterly estimate as to whether the target will be met. 

 

(iii) Improvement Plans for KPIs 
 

Page 52



Appendix 2 

11 

Each year, the Cabinet identified PIs which it considers to be key to the business of 

the Authority.  Management Board require Heads of Service to produce 

Improvement Plans for these KPIs, which are monitored during the year.  Heads of 

Service are responsible for improving performance, for these indicators. 

 

6. MONITORING AND REVIEW OF THE DATA QUALITY STRATEGY 

 
 Progress with the implementation of the data quality strategy will be monitored by 

Management Board, in consultation with the PMU and Heads of Service. 

 
7. ACTION PLAN – APPENDIX 1 
 
8. MATRIX OF DATA QUALITY RESPONSIBILITIES – APPENDIX 2 
 

 

 

 
g\c\human resources Mr Tidey\16tidey\data quality strategy 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



(A
pp

en
di

x 
2(

a)
) 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
D

at
a 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 
  A

ct
io

n 
H

ow
 

W
ho

 
W

he
n 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r d
at

a 
qu

al
ity

 if
 p

ar
t 

of
 jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l p
ro

ce
ss

. 
S

ho
ul

d 
al

re
ad

y 
be

 th
e 

ca
se

 b
ut

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 c

he
ck

 a
nd

 re
ct

ify
 a

ny
 g

ap
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

, w
he

n 
m

ak
in

g 
su

bm
is

si
on

s 
on

 
na

tio
na

lly
 re

po
rte

d 
P

Is
, t

he
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fo

llo
w

ed
. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

a 
sy

st
em

 o
f t

ho
ro

ug
h 

re
vi

ew
 w

he
n 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

qu
ar

te
rly

 re
tu

rn
s 

A
ll 

P
I r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 P
M

U
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 lo
ca

l P
Is

 h
av

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
de

fin
iti

on
s 

an
d 

co
un

tin
g 

ru
le

s 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 re
vi

ew
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
P

I t
ea

m
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 a

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 P

I d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 fr

om
 

da
ta

 th
ey

 in
pu

t/a
na

ly
se

/e
xt

ra
ct

 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 (w
he

re
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

) 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
at

a 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
ex

te
rn

al
 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

m
ee

ts
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
th

is
 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
m

ak
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
or

 b
y 

di
re

ct
 a

ct
io

n 
su

ch
 a

s 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
sp

ot
 c

he
ck

s 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
at

a 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

re
 ro

bu
st

 
S

pe
ci

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
da

ta
 q

ua
lit

y 
le

ad
 fo

r e
ac

h 
sy

st
em

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

at
a 

qu
al

ity
 le

ad
 fo

r e
ac

h 
sy

st
em

 
D

at
a 

ga
th

er
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 

P
M

U
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

pi
la

tio
n/

su
bm

is
si

on
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r e

ve
ry

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 

re
po

rte
d 

P
I 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
al

re
ad

y 
is

su
ed

 –
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 
20

06
, s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

A
ll 

P
I c

om
pi

le
rs

/re
vi

ew
er

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 P

M
U

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

et
 

fo
r a

ll 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

 re
po

rte
d 

P
Is

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

al
re

ad
y 

is
su

ed
 –

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 

20
06

, s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
A

ll 
P

I c
om

pi
le

rs
/re

vi
ew

er
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 P
M

U
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  N
B

 
Th

e 
fo

cu
s 

of
 th

is
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

is
 in

iti
al

ly
 o

n 
da

ta
 q

ua
lit

y 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
P

Is
.  

O
nc

e 
th

es
e 

ac
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
fo

cu
s 

of
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
br

oa
de

ne
d.

 
 Page 55



(A
pp

en
di

x 
2(

a)
) 

g\
c\

hu
m

an
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

m
r t

id
ey

\1
6t

id
ey

\A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

Page 56



(A
pp

en
di

x 
2(

b)
) 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

 
   M

at
rix

 o
f D

at
a 

Q
ua

lit
y 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

   A
ll 

w
ith

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
in

pu
tti

ng
/e

xt
ra

ct
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 s

ys
te

m
s 

 

M
an

ag
er

s 
w

ith
 d

at
a 

qu
al

ity
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
PI

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

of
fic

er
s)

 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
PM

U
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 re

le
va

nt
 d

at
a 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 

 In
pu

t a
cc

ur
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 U

p-
to

-d
at

e 
re

co
rd

 k
ee

pi
ng

 
(n

ot
 e

nt
er

ed
 in

 a
 b

lo
ck

) 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

ro
bu

st
 c

on
tro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
 Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

ct
ify

 g
ap

s 
in

 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

 Tr
ai

ni
ng

/g
ui

da
nc

e 
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
he

 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

of
 d

at
a 

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 J
ob

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 
re

fle
ct

 d
at

a 
qu

al
ity

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 o

f r
ob

us
tn

es
s 

of
 

da
ta

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
lis

t o
f s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

D
Q

 a
ct

io
ns

 fo
r P

I d
at

a 
 C

o-
or

di
na

te
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 s
ys

te
m

s,
 li

as
in

g 
w

ith
 IA

 
an

d 
P

I l
ea

ds
 

 C
he

ck
in

g 
th

at
 p

ro
po

se
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r P

I s
ys

te
m

s 
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

D
Q

 
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

D
Q

 to
 

M
B

 
 

S
up

po
rt 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
 In

co
rp

or
at

e 
D

Q
 is

su
es

 in
 

ro
ut

in
e 

au
di

t w
or

k 

    
g\

c\
hu

m
an

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
– 

m
r t

id
ey

\1
6t

id
ey

\A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3   Value for Money Strategy – Draft 4 7/8/06 

 1

Value for Money Strategy 
Background 
 
It is important that the Council has a good understanding of the inter-relationship 
between its performance and its costs, and uses this information to make sound 
strategic and policy decisions.  This Value for Money Strategy sets out the Council’s 
approach to ensuring that it obtains value for money. 
 
The Audit Commission undertakes an annual Use of Resources assessment to 
evaluate how well councils manage and use their financial resources.  The 
assessment focuses on the importance of having sound and strategic financial 
management to ensure that resources are available to support and improve Council 
services.  This assessment is based upon national ‘Key Lines of Enquiry’ (KLOEs), 
for which Value For Money is a key component.  This national framework provides 
the basis for the Council’s actions to improve its performance in relation to value for 
money.   
 
Policy Statement 
 
The Council recognises its responsibilities as a custodian of public funds to strive for 
value for money in the delivery of services. 
 
The Council seeks to achieve and where possible improve value for money by 
ensuring that: 
 

• Costs compare well with other local authorities, and where appropriate 
other sectors, allowing for external factors 

• Costs are commensurate with service delivery, performance and 
outcomes achieved 

• Costs reflect policy decisions 
• Performance in relation to value for money is monitored and reviewed 
• Improved value for money and efficiency gains are achieved 
• Full long term costs are taken into account when making procurement 

and other spending decisions 
• external funding and partnership opportunities are sought in order to 

enhance funding by the Council. 
 
This strategy sets out the Council’s approach to achieving these aims, including the 
responsibilities of members and officers for the delivery of value for money. 
 
(a) Member Level 
 
(i) Executive Functions 
 
On an annual basis, Cabinet (and where appropriate Portfolio Holders) will  
 

• Consider the outcomes of the annual consultation exercise of partners 
and stake holders when setting spending levels for the budget. 

• allocate resources in line with agreed budget priorities, taking into 
account performance 

• Plan actions and allocate resources in the light of agreed priorities, 
identified community issues, deprivation indices and customer 
consultation feedback. 

• Set targets for cost reductions and efficiency gains 

Page 59



Appendix 3   Value for Money Strategy – Draft 4 7/8/06 

 2

• Agree the annual efficiency plan 
• Review any savings produced through the Procurement strategy 

 
The Cabinet will also review the allocation and use of resources on an on-going 
basis, especially when making policy decisions, to ensure value for money. 
 
The Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee may also undertake 
some of these functions as directed by Cabinet. 
 
(ii) Scrutiny Functions 
 
The role of Scrutiny will be to compare and assess performance and associated 
costs.   
 
On an annual basis, Overview and Scrutiny Committee will carry out the 
following tasks: 
 

• Establish and monitor a programme for reviews of service areas via 
the Task and Finish Panel framework, with one of the aims being to 
ensure that unit costs and performance are compared, scrutinised and 
improved where appropriate. 

• Receive reports on the reviews and make recommendations to 
Cabinet 

 
The Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel will carry out the  
scrutiny of Council performance and costs, consisting of  
 

• Performance Indicator information (this will include the selection of 40 
KPIs each year) on a quarterly basis 

• Local unit cost information, compared to national/regional/local 
benchmarks and links to KPI, BVPI and LPI performance where 
appropriate, on an annual basis 

• Progress with key capital and revenue projects in terms of both 
financial and operational issues. 

 
(b) Management Board’s role 
 
On a quarterly basis Management Board will carry out the following tasks: 
 

• Scrutiny of performance information for the 40 KPIs. 
• Consider progress with the identified key capital projects, on both a 

budgetary and operational basis. 
 

On an annual basis Management Board will: 
 

• Scrutinise performance information for all BVPIs/LPIs. 
• Review the Council’s Value For Money framework by considering key 

unit cost and quality indicators, and the Council’s performance with 
reference to benchmark groups, surveys etc. 

• Provide a strategic steer for Members and officers on the development 
of the Council’s priorities and associated value for money/performance 
management considerations, taking into account quality and cost. 

 

Page 60



Appendix 3   Value for Money Strategy – Draft 4 7/8/06 

 3

On an ongoing basis Management Board will: 
 

• Through the Cabinet Agenda Planning Group, ensure that full and 
accurate cost information is included in reports to the Cabinet, to 
ensure the proper alignment of resources with priorities. 

• Ensure that appropriate processes are in place to secure high 
standards of data quality. 

 
(c) Heads of Service 
 
On a quarterly basis Heads of Service will: 
 

• Provide BVPI/LPI information to Management Board and members, 
reviewing performance and take corrective action as necessary.  This 
will follow a critical review of all BVPI, LPI and management PI 
information with service managers in order to agree any required 
action to be taken as a result. 

• Review their budget expenditure, ensuring that resources are 
prioritised to key areas, and that budgetary performance is understood 

• Identify and quantify any efficiency gains that have arisen in the 
previous quarter and identify any opportunities for future efficiency 
gains  

• Review progress with capital programme projects 
 
On an annual basis Heads of Service will: 
 

• Review and update their benchmarking data to determine whether 
their service provides value for money in terms of unit costs (against 
the Council’s overall approach to value for money and benchmarking) 

• Take any necessary corrective action in the light of this 
• Ensure that that all opportunities to review cost data on a local, 

regional and national basis are identified e.g. by joining relevant 
benchmarking clubs. 

• Critically review the Audit Commission’s cost profiles for the council, 
and their comparisons with all district councils, and investigate further 
any areas where unit costs appear to be inappropriate or 
unreasonably high. 

 
(d) The Performance Management Unit 
 
This Unit will carry out the following functions: 
 

• The maintenance of the Performance Management system 
• Co-ordination of the collection and reporting of unit cost data, where 

appropriate linking this to KPI data.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Appendix 3   Value for Money Strategy – Draft 4 7/8/06 

 4

 
 

Actions and documents required to support the strategy 
 
In order for the above actions to be carried out effectively, the following actions will 
be required to support the value for money strategy: 
 
Data and Actions already in place 
 
1. The provision of ward-based or more detailed information on the profile of the 

District’s population in terms of age, gender, race and health; 
 

2. The provision of ward-based or more detailed information on the profile of the 
District in terms of deprivation, using national indices. 

 
3. The production of an annual Efficiency Statement informed by this Value For 

Money Strategy. 
 

Actions required to be put in place 
 
1. The production of a Procurement Strategy setting out how the Council intends 

to secure value for money through the purchasing of goods and services. 
 

2. The development of a methodology to bring together PI and cost data into 
one linked table, showing clearly the relationship between performance and 
value for money. 

 
3. The production of a Data Quality Policy. 

 
4. A consideration of the level of external support required to carry out the above 

actions. 
 
 
 
 
 

g\c\mr tidey human resources\15tidey\outline value for money strategy 

Page 62



Report to the Finance & Performance 
Management Standing Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 15 August 2006 
 
Portfolio: Finance & Performance Management 
 
Subject: Quarterly Financial Monitoring  
 
Officer contact for further information: Peter Maddock (01992 - 56 4602). 
 
Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 – 56 4470) 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. That the Panel note the financial monitoring report for the First quarter of 

2006/07;  
 
2. As this is the first panel meeting of the financial year members are invited to re-

affirm that monitoring should continue on a quarterly basis and in this format. 
 

 
Report: 
 
1. The Panel has within its terms of reference to consider financial monitoring reports on 
key areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio. This is the first quarterly report for 
2006/07 and covers the period from 1 April 2006 to 30 June 2006. 
 
2. Salaries monitoring data is presented as well as it represents a large proportion of the 
authorities expenditure and is an area in which large under spends have been seen. The 
salaries data is held by Service rather than by portfolio, although there are clearly some 
services that are linked closely to particular portfolios.  
 
Main Variances: 
 
3. Comments are provided on the monitoring schedules but a few points are highlighted 
here as they are of particular significance. The salaries schedule shows an under spend of 
some £242,000 (5.1% of budget) and reflects the fact that staff vacancies are running at a 
high level. The report regarding vacancies elsewhere on the agenda has more detail on this 
particular issue.  

 
4. Income sources such as Local Land Charges and Car Parking show a small 
overachievement and Building Control and Development Control a small underachievement. 
Small Variances like this are always likely and therefore give little cause for concern as long 
as cumulatively they do not become significant. 
  
5. Expenditure relating to the alteration to the Local Plan which falls under Forward 
Planning shows a marked underspend. This is DDF money, which is expected to be spent 
later in the year. 
 
6. The Housing Repairs Fund also shows an underspend. Much of this is due to the 
cyclical maintenance contracts, which did not commence until July.  
 
7. As at 30 June 2006 no payments had been made to Sports and Leisure Management 
Ltd. The negative entry shown was cleared in July when the payments relating to 2005/06 
were made. Since month three April has also been paid and May and June are expected to 
be paid shortly. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



 
8. Off Street Car Parking shows an overspend but this is due to maintenance work 
occurring earlier than originally anticipated. Also Land and Property and Refuse Collection 
income show an adverse variance but in both cases this is due to income relating to 2005/06 
not being received by the end of June 2006. 
 
9. It is proposed that the tables for each portfolio be reported to the relevant portfolio 
holder for their comment beginning with the second quarters monitoring schedules. 
 
Capital Monitoring 
 
10. The Cabinet of 4 September will receive the updated Capital Programme which will 
revise the spending profile of the existing programme and introduce new items agreed since 
the last update in June 2006. It is therefore proposed that from the second quarters 
monitoring onward capital monitoring of specific capital schemes be included within this 
report. The schemes to be included in the monitoring report will be put forward within the next 
report and members will then have a chance to comment on those schemes and whether 
there are others it is felt should be included. 

 
Conclusion 

 
11. The committee is asked to note the position as at Month 3 and re-affirm that quarterly 
monitoring is adequate and should continue in this format. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 64



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
5
/0

6

S
E

R
V

IC
E

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
B

U
D

G
E

T
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

T
O

3
0
/0

6
/0

6
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

T
O

3
0
/0

6
/0

5
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%
£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
8
1

8
7

-6
.9

7
4

7
3

1
.4

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
4
8

5
1

-5
.9

4
0

5
0

-2
0
.0

H
R

&
P

M
U

 *
7
1

1
0
4

-3
1
.7

9
0

8
7

3
.4

P
O

L
IC

Y
U

N
IT

1
7
4

1
8
8

-7
.4

1
6
3

2
0
1

-1
8
.9

L
E

G
A

L
,A

D
M

IN
&

E
S

T
A

T
E

S
 *

3
8
8

3
9
1

-0
.8

3
4
1

3
8
1

-1
0
.5

F
IN

A
N

C
E

  
*

7
1
3

6
9
7

2
.3

6
4
1

6
5
4

-2
.0

IN
F

O
,C

O
M

M
&

T
E

C
H

1
9
1

2
3
0

-1
7
.0

1
4
8

1
9
3

-2
3
.3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

7
2
3

7
4
7

-3
.2

6
7
4

7
1
9

-6
.3

P
U

B
L

IC
W

O
R

K
S

U
N

IT
4
2
0

4
7
6

-1
1
.8

3
3
7

4
0
7

-1
7
.2

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

5
7
2

5
8
3

-1
.9

5
1
1

5
5
7

-8
.3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  

*
5
1
7

5
4
9

-5
.8

4
3
9

4
9
1

-1
0
.6

L
E

IS
U

R
E

*
5
6
5

6
0
2

-6
.1

1
,0

4
7

1
,1

3
5

-7
.8

T
O

T
A

L
4
,4

6
3

4
,7

0
5

-5
.1

4
,5

0
5

4
,9

4
8

-9
.0

*
A

g
e
n
c
y

c
o
s
ts

a
re

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t

h
e

s
a
la

ri
e
s

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

.

Page 65



2
0

0
6

/0
7

-P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

L
E

A
D

E
R

`S

F
u

ll
Y

e
a

r
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5

/0
6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a

jo
r

in
c
o

m
e

ite
m

s
:

L
o

c
a

l
L

a
n

d
C

h
a

rg
e

s
-3

8
4

-9
6

-1
1

2
-9

5
-1

6
-1

6
.7

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

re
fl
e

c
ts

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f

s
e

a
rc

h
e

s
o

ve
r 

th
e

s
a

m
e

p
e

ri
o

d
la

s
t
ye

a
r 

, 

a
n

d
c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y

a
n

in
c
e

a
s
e

in
in

c
o

m
e

o
ve

r
b

u
d

g
e

t.

F
ir
s
t
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t
v 

A
c
tu

a
l

Page 66



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
IV

IL
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

&
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

2
9
5

5
0

5
3

3
5

3
6
.0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 t
e
n
d
s
 t

o
b
e

h
e
a
v
ie

r 
to

w
a
rd

s

y
e
a
r

e
n
d
.

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

5
4
4

1
7
7

2
0
2

1
8
1

2
5

1
4
.1

£
1
7
,0

0
0

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

in
c
u
rr

e
d

e
a
rl

ie
r 

th
a
n

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

3
6
2

6
2

5
8

6
0

-4
-6

.5

1
,2

0
1

2
8
9

3
1
3

2
7
6

2
4

8
.3

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

-1
,0

0
9

-2
5
2

-2
6
7

-3
5
9

-1
5

-6
.0

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

-4
4
7

-1
1
2

-1
2
5

-8
8

-1
3

-1
1
.6

-1
,4

5
6

-3
6
4

-3
9
2

-4
4
7

-2
8

-7
.7

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 67



2
0
0
6
/0

7
-

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

W
E

L
L
B

E
IN

G

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

G
ra

n
ts

 t
o

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 G

ro
u
p
s

1
3
0

3
2

1
0

-3
6

-2
2

-6
8
.8

£
5
5
,0

0
0

re
m

a
in

s
u
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
a
t

e
n
d

o
f

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
s
h
o
w

s
g
ra

n
ts

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

b
u
t

n
o
t

p
a
id

o
u
t.

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
S

e
c
to

r
S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
6
1

7
4

7
4

7
0

0
0
.0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

F
a
re

s
8
9
1

2
2
3

1
5
3

5
3

-7
0

-3
1
.4

C
S

B
 G

ro
w

th
o
f

£
5
8
2
,0

0
0

is
in

c
lu

d
e
d

in

c
u
rr

e
n
t

y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

fr
e
e
 t

ra
v
e
l 
fo

r
o
v
e
r

6
0
`s

1
,1

8
2

3
2
9

2
3
7

8
7

-9
2

-2
8
.0

&
d
is

a
b
le

d
.

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
&

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

-6
7

-1
7

-1
0

-1
8

7
4
1
.2

2
0
0
5
/0

6
in

c
lu

d
e
d

D
D

F
o
f

£
5
0
,0

0
0
 f

o
r

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
o
n
e

o
ff

in
c
o
m

e
u
n
d
e
r

n
e
w

li
c
e
n
s
in

g
re

g
im

e
.

H
a
c
k
n
e
y

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
s

-1
0
7

-2
7

-3
3

-3
1

-6
-2

2
.2

-1
7
4

-4
4

-4
3

-4
9

1
2
.3

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 68



2
0
0
6
/0

7
-

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
- 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

&
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

&
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l
E

s
ta

te
s

-8
8
7

-4
2
5

-4
2
8

-4
3
2

-3
-0

.7

L
a
n
d

&
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
-2

0
9

-3
7

3
0

-5
0

6
7

1
8
1
.1

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
o
f

£
8
6
,0

0
0

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
re

n
t

fo
r

D
a
v
id

L
lo

y
d

C
e
n
tr

e
n
o
t

y
e
t

re
c
e
iv

e
d

fo
r

-1
,0

9
6

-4
6
2

-3
9
8

-4
8
2

6
4

1
3
.9

2
0
0
5
/0

6
.

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 69



2
0
0
6
/0

7
-P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

E
D

IA
,

&
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
&

 I
C

T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

5
8
5

2
3
1

2
0
3

2
0
6

-2
8

-1
2
.1

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

d
o
w

n
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t,

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

in
 t

h
e

fi
rs

t
q
u
a
rt

e
r

is
h
e
a
v
ie

r

th
a
n

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t

p
e
ri

o
d
s
.

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s

2
2
9

4
2

3
3

4
1

-9
-2

1
.4

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

d
o
w

n
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t

T
h
e

a
c
tu

a
l/
b
u
d
g
e
t

fo
r

c
a
ll

c
h
a
rg

e
s

&
li
n
e

8
1
4

2
7
3

2
3
6

2
4
7

-3
7

-1
3
.6

re
n
ta

l
re

la
te

 t
o
 t

w
o

m
o
n
th

s
.

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 70



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

1
,6

2
6

2
9
8

2
7
7

2
8
6

-2
1

-7
.0

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
1
,2

2
1

2
0
8

1
9
0

1
9
2

-1
8

-8
.7

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

1
,3

4
0

3
9
4

4
0
5

3
7
0

1
1

2
.8

4
,1

8
7

9
0
0

8
7
2

8
4
8

-2
8

-3
.1

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

-2
7
5

0
6
9

-6
8

6
9

0
.0

T
ip

p
in

g
a
w

a
y

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
2
0
0
5
/0

6

s
ti
ll

a
w

a
it
e
d
.

1
s
t

q
u
a
rt

e
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
d
u
e

J
u
ly

2
0
0
6

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

-3
4
4

0
-3

-7
8

-3
0
.0

1
s
t

q
u
a
rt

e
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

c
re

d
it
s

d
u
e

J
u
ly

2
0
0
6
.

-6
1
9

0
6
6

-1
4
6

6
6

0
.0

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

T
h
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

is
p
ro

fi
le

d
o
n
 t

h
e

b
a
s
is

o
f

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
in

 t
h
e

m
o
n
th

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e

w
o
rk

is
d
o
n
e
.

A
s

a
re

s
u
lt
 t

h
e

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d

c
o
s
ts

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

w
it
h

C
o
ry

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
d
id

n
o
t

im
p
a
c
t

u
n
ti
l
J
u
ly

.

Page 71



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

&
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
B

u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

F
o
rw

a
rd

P
la

n
n
in

g
2
5
4

6
4

1
2

2
-5

2
-8

1
.3

D
D

F
fo

r
L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

1
2
1

2
9

1
5

3
6

-1
4

-4
8
.3

B
u
il
d
in

g
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

E
a
rn

in
g

3
7

6
1

1
9

-5
-8

3
.3

4
1
2

9
9

2
8

5
7

-7
1

-2
1
2
.8

6

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

-5
6
4

-1
4
1

-1
3
3

-1
3
8

8
-5

.7

B
u
il
d
in

g
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

E
a
rn

in
g

-5
8
6

-1
3
1

-1
2
3

-1
5
9

8
-6

.1

-1
1
5
0

-2
7
2

-2
5
6

-2
9
7

1
6

-1
1
.7

8

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

Page 72



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 T

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
2
7
8

2
5
2

2
6
2

1
8
0

1
0

4
.0

C
y
c
li
c
a
l
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

s
ta

rt
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
p
a
ir

s
5
,5

6
2

1
,3

9
1

1
,0

6
7

9
5
5

-3
2
4

-2
3
.3

J
u
ly

2
0
0
6
.

A
ls

o
a

fe
w

o
th

e
r

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

o
n

a
ll

a
re

a
s

s
p
e
c
ia

l
w

o
rk

s
.

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
It

e
m

s
1
,2

9
7

3
2
4

2
9
5

2
5
8

-2
9

-9
.0

7
,1

3
7

1
,9

6
7

1
,6

2
4

1
,3

9
3

-3
4
3

-1
7
.4

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

G
ro

s
s

D
w

e
ll
in

g
R

e
n
t

-2
2
,1

5
7

-5
,5

3
9

-5
,5

4
6

-5
,1

8
8

-7
-0

.1

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 73



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

L
E

IS
U

R
E

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5
/0

6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
u
s
e
u
m

1
1
2

3
8

3
3

3
1

-5
-1

3
.2

B
u
il
d
in

g
s

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

&
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

p
ro

je
c
t

a
re

b
o
th

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s

&
 O

p
e
n

S
p
a
c
e
s

1
8
7

4
7

4
6

4
2

-1
-2

.1

B
u
il
d
in

g
s

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
,

fi
x
e
d

p
la

n
t,

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

C
e
n
tr

e
3
2
9

1
1
3

7
8

6
3

-3
5

-3
1
.0

ru
n
w

a
y

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l

w
o
rk

s
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t.

6
2
8

1
9
8

1
5
7

1
3
6

-4
1

-4
6
.2

6

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

C
e
n
tr

e
-1

3
6
4

-3
6
1

-3
6
0

-3
5
0

1
-0

.3

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

c
o
s
t

M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

L
e
is

u
re

 F
a
c
il
it
ie

s
:-

L
o
u
g
h
to

n
L
e
is

u
re

C
e
n
tr

e
1
4
6

2
4

-7
1

N
/A

-9
5

-3
9
5
.8

E
p
p
in

g
S

p
o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
1
4
0

2
3

-8
4

N
/A

-1
0
7

-4
6
5
.2

W
a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o
o
l

4
8
7

8
1

-2
4
8

N
/A

-3
2
9

-4
0
6
.2

O
n
g
a
r

S
p
o
rt

s
c
e
n
tr

e
5
7
9

9
6

-3
0
1

N
/A

-3
9
7

-4
1
3
.5

1
3
5
2

2
2
4

-7
0
4

0
-9

2
8

-1
6
8
0
.7

7

T
h
e

c
o
s
ts

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
2
0
0
5
/0

6
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
a
t

y
e
a
r,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
s
e

s
ti
ll

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

p
a
id

a
t

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
6
. 

T
h
e

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

u
p
 t

o
a
n
d

in
c
lu

d
in

g
A

p
ri

l
w

e
re

p
a
id

in
J
u
ly

s
o
 t

h
e

c
re

d
it

s
h
o
w

n
w

h
ic

h

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

w
il
l

d
is

a
p
p
e
a
r 

th
e
n
.

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

Page 74



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
F

U
N

D

F
u

ll
Y

e
a

r
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

M
a

jo
r

e
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
ite

m
s

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
5

/0
6

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

B
e

d
 &

 B
re

a
k
fa

s
t 
A

c
c
o

m
.

2
7

9
6

9
7

5
6

0
6

8
.7

0

2
7

9
6

9
7

5
6

0
6

8
.7

0

M
a

jo
r

in
c
o

m
e

ite
m

s

B
e

d
 &

 B
re

a
k
fa

s
t 
A

c
c
o

m
.

-2
7

7
-6

9
-6

8
-7

4
1

-1
.4

5

L
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

d
m

in
-1

3
8

-1
-1

-1
0

0
.0

-4
1

5
-7

0
-6

9
-7

5
1

-1
.4

5

B
u

d
g

e
t
v 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

F
ir
s
t
Q

u
a

rt
e

r

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank


